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ABSTRACT 

11 The Origins of the Frosty Morn Strike, 1968-1969" 

proposes to show the way the union became interested in the 

workers in the Clarksville Frosty Mo :..-n plant, their subse­

quent attempts at getting the Amalgamated Meatcuttars and 

Butcher Worlanen of North America, AFL-CIO, accepted as the 

bargaining agent for the plant, and the strike which 

ultimately resulted when the union was not at first accepted. 

The thesis will begin with information on the 

background conditions in the plant prior to unionization. 

This will be done with the Cost of Living Index and the 

union scale. 

The background of Frosty Morn business will be dis­

cussed along with early organizational attempts by various 

unions. The Amalgamated Meatcutters and Butcher Workmen 

began its attempts around 1962. These attempts to become 

the bargaining agent for the Clarksville workers at the 

Frosty Morn plant led to the election controversy in 1962-

1963 and to cases being brought before the National Labor 

Relations Board. 

I propose to deal with the National Labor Relations 

Board's accounts of the cases brought before her dealing 

with the controversy between the Amalgamated Meatcutters 

and Butcher Workmen and Frosty Morn in relation to the union's 



becoming the bargaining agent. There are only a few cases 

that are important enough to be dealt with in relation to 

the outcome of the Supreme Court decision and the final 

decisions of the National Labor Relations Board. 

The court rulings are important only to the final 

outcome of the strike. I have analy2~d the records from 

the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals and the rulings of the 

Supreme Court. These follow logically from the National 

Labor Relations Board's decisions and should be dealt with 

in subsequent chapters. 

The strike will be described in the terms of the 

union's methods and goals. 'Iha minor violence of the 

strike and the consumer boycott will be considered as will 

the consumer boycott. The boycott showed how the union 

encouraged public support to help win the strike. 

The final chapters will deal with the settlement 

of the strike with a study of the contract which was won 

in 1969 as compared to the contract the union had proposed 

in 1965 and 1968 . 
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Chapter I 

CONDITIONS AT FROSTY MORN PRIOR TO THE STRIKE 

The Amalgamated Meat Gutters union asserted that 

labor conditions at Frosty Morn prio1 to the strike were 

inferior and below reasonable national standards; on the 

other hand, Frosty Morn officials denied these charges, 

insisting that labor conditions in the company's Clarksville 

plant were reasonable and certainly not inferior. In order 

to attempt to recreate the general atmosphere that prevailed 

in the plant prior to the strike, evidence from various 

sources must be pieced together. To begin with, there 

should be an analysis of prevalling labor standards, espe­

cially wages, hours, and cost-of-living factors. The 

following graphs represent a picture of these standards as 

presented by the Department of Labor's Cost of Living Index 

for 1968. 



INTRODUCTION 

Accumulating the material on a strike as recent as 

the one against the Tennessee Packers, Frosty Morn Division 

was difficult because of scarcity of materials. The author 

was able to use only the records of the Amalgamated Meat­

cutters and Butcher Worlanen of North America, AFL-CIO. 

Both the International Headquarters in Chicago and the 

Local 405 in Nashville were always ready to lend a hand 

with information and documants. 1 

Records which would have been valuable were denied. 

The Frosty Morn plant in Clarksville withheld all informa­

tion in relation to the strike, despite written requests to 

both Clay Barnes, plant manager at the time this thesis was 

begun and Crosby Moore, plant manager in 1974.2 

The fact that only one party to the dispute made 

records available for study made the writing of this thesis 

extremely difficult. 'Ihe task would have been even more 

troublesome had it not been that the public records of the 

1see Appendix for letter from Robert Delaney, Edu­
cational Field Representative of Amalgamated Meat cutters 
and Butcher Workmen of North America, AFL-CIO, who advised 
of the availability of data from the union. 

2see Appendix for letter from Clay Barnes, General 
Manager of Frosty Morn Meats, Clarksville, Tennessee in 
which the company denied access to their records for various 
reasons. 



National Labor Relations Board and the records of the Sixth 

Circuit Court of Appeals in Cincinnati which were made 

available. 3 

The available information did make it easier to see 

the story and to draw conclusions. The most difficult part 

of the task at hand was to piece the 1tory together and to 

find information on conditions in the plant prior to the 

beginning of the strike in April, 1968. For this informa­

tion, I had to draw chiefly from the Cost of Living Index 

for 1968. Some of the data concerning the pay scale of 

Frosty Morn was drawn from the Clarksville Leaf Chronicle. 

Some information was taken from the official union publica­

tion, The Butcher Workman. 

Most information in other chapters is taken from 

the union records with informa t ion on the strike itself 

coming from the Leaf Chronicle. 

Records pertaining to the National Labor Relations 

cases and the court cases are taken from the official 

records of those bodies and from union related rAcords. 

3see Appendix for letters from James Higgins, Clerk 
of the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals and Micheal Taylor, 
Deputy Assistant General Counsel for the National Labor 
Relations Board in which materials were offered. 

vi 
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Graph #2. Average Hourly Earnings, Overtim~, 
Average Work Hour for Meat Industry, 1968 
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At the beginning of the strike against Neuhoff in 

Clarksville, the Frosty Morn plant advertised the need for 

workers. 4 In the attempt to attract prospective employees 

Frosty Morn published the following typical payroll whioh 

they claimed was representative of the week of April 6, 

1968. 5 
• 
TABLE I. ADVERTISED SALARIES 

AT TIME OF STRIKE 

PAYROLL# 

48120 
48140 
4806o 
48220 
48640 
48380 

44030 
44070 
44080 
44100 
44060 

08030 
08040 
08060 
08120 
08150 
08270 

JANITOR 

SAUSAGE 

TRUCK DRIVERS 

$176.53 
195.50 
237.65 
140.71 
109.45 
148.53 

136.67 
145.50 
170.03 
177.00 
135. 60 

212,.34 
216.57 
174.38 
292.25 
272.25 
184.50 

4ciarksville ~ Chronicle, May 5, 1969, page 5. 

5Ibid. 

5 

6It is not stated by the Leaf Chronicle whether this 
salary is the gross or the net. 



6 

TABLE I. (continued) 

PAYROLL# SALARY 

PORK SLAUGHTER 
48120 176.53 
48140 195.50 
48060 237 . 65 
48220 140.71 
486io 109.45 
483 o 148.53 

SHIPPING 
06140 140.18 
06050 139.78 
06040 151 . 59 
06030 144.84 
06150 146. 7i 
06226 124.8 

BEEF & VEAL COOLER 
16020 196.90 
160~ 199.81 
160 180.~ 
16050 197. 4 

CLEAN-UP 
40020 132. 77 
40030 l~.97 
40060 111.57 

PACKAGE MEATS--FEMALE 

24120 105.86 

2io15 121,80 
2 160 121.39 
28010 117.95 
30090 113.2i 
30180 106.9 
32080 112.75 
30150 109.94 

MAINTENANCE 

34040 125.75 
34100 132.65 

34120 1~.25 
34180 

1 6.07 

34200 1~.08 
34240 

1 .42 



TABIE I. (continued) 

PAYROLL# SALARY 

42040 
42060 
42080 
42120 
42320 
42180 

50060 
50160 
50220 
50280 

BEEF DRESS 

PORK CUTTING 

OURINGHOUSE AND SMOKINGHOUSE 

135.63 
150. 63 
172.19 
165.63 
220.02 
l~.67 

198.33 
206.63 
177.84 
236.40 

46o 30 H,o • 60 
46050 212.34 
46070 161.72 

.46170 153.93 

06227 
06220 
06350 
42470 
48770 

NEW EMPLOYEE IN TRAINING 
LESS SIX MONTHS SERVICE 

104.06 
140.38 
138. 35 
115.63 
148.13 

1 

This is all the information that was available to me 

concerning the salaries at Frosty Morn. 



On the other hand, the union scale for the meat 

i ndustry incorporated prior to the strike was as follows: 7 

HOUR RATE CODE 

0 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

RATE 

2.675 
2.720 
2.765 
2.810 
2.855 
2.900 
2.945 
2.990 
3.035 
3.080 
3.125 
3.170 
3.215 
3.260 
3.305 
3.350 
3.395 
3-~);t.0 
3.L1.05 
3.530 
3.575 
3.620 
3.665 

8 

The union wage cannot be compared to the hourly wage 

at Frosty Morn; however, the union rate multiplied by forty 
• 

hours would generally give a figure comparable to that which 

Frosty Morn represented in the full page ad in the Clarks­

ville Leaf Chronicle. It must be noted that the salary 

stated by Frosty Morn in i t s ad did not state that the pay 

was for a forty hour week although the assumption would 

probably bo made. 

711contract Proposal," December 6, 1967, Tennessee 
Packers Records of the Amalgamated Meat Cutters and Butcher 
Workmen' of North America, AFL-CIO; hereinafter referred to 
as the Union Records. 



At the time or the strike, tha Amalg8lllated ~at 
8 

Cutters and Butcher Workmen of North America, AFL-CIO 

charged that the workers at the plant in Clarksville were 

working as much as a sixty hour week. 9 

9 

During the strike the AMC published facts that they 

had accumulated about Frosty Morn presmnably from workers 

from the various Neuhoff plants. 'lhe union consistently 

maintained that Frosty Morn workers were working for wages 

that were II substandard, non-union, and well below union 

rates. 1110 It was the union's contention that employees 

made only the minimum wage which was well below the union 

scale. They reported that a boner at a Frosty Morn plant 

in Quincey, Alabama was making $1. 75 an hour despite the 

tact that he had eight years' experience and that a newly 

employed sticker made $1. 65 an hour.11 Thus, a worker with 

eight years' experience was earning only a dime an hour 

more than a worker with only one year's experience. In the 

same report it was reported that a truck driver with 

8iiereinafter abbreviated as AMC. 

911An Empire Built on Low Wages, 11 Butcher Worlanan, 
January, 1969, page 3. 

lO"Full Union Campaign Backs Local 405 in Frosty 
Morn Strike, 11 Butcher Workman, July and August, 1968, page 
44. 

ll"Neuhoff-Anti-Union Employer," Butcher Workman, 
November and December, 1968, page 2. It should be noted 
that the two different jobs in the plant are being compared 
in respect to pay scale. 



thirteen years' experience at the Frosty &rn plant was 

making only $2.25 an hour compared to a union driver 

employed by Swift in Nashville who made $2.90½ an hour.12 

Employees at Frosty Morn were required to furnish 

their own uniform, boots, gloves, and hairnet in the case 

of women employees.1 3 Although the employees furnished 

necessary clothes for the uniform, the company agreed to 

launder the clothes at a cost of ~~.60 a week to the 

employee.14 The employees were allowed no time to change 

into their uniforms. She either came to work dressed or 

changed on her own time which left her in the position or 

bringing an extra change of clothe s to work. 

10 

Of course, in contract negotiations prior to the 

strike, the AMC sought a wage increase as well as clothing 

privileges wherein Frosty Mo r n would furnish the uniform 

and allow time on the clock for the employee to change her 

clothes. The union had calculat ed that an employee lost 

$16.40 on a forty hour week in time lost changing clothes. 

This loss amounted to $39.98 on a sixty hour week ' and at 
15 

least $2,078.96 a year for the lost time. 

12Ibid. 

13"An Empire Built on Low Wages, 11 Butcher Worlanan, 
January, 1969, page 3. 

14"Neuhoff-Anti-Union E)nployer, 11 Butcher Workman, 
November and December, 1968, page 2. 

l5Ibid. 



The AMC also sought an increase in the number of 

holidays which the company offered. The union hoped to 

11 

bring in more paid holidays with extended rights regarding 

paid vacations. At the time of the strike, Frosty Morn 

offered one week vacation after a full year of service begin­

ning in January. If an employee was hired after January 15, 

she would work until the next January 15 before the company 

would begin to calculate her year of service as having 
16 

begun. In the matter of vacations, an employee at Fros~y 

Morn received a two week vacation after sixty months 

continuous service; whereas, union shops required only two 

years service for a two week paid vacation. 

The union also sought a seniority system within the 

company. According to Frosty Morn, seniority was merited 

by skill and physical capabilities 'Which actually left the 

decision to the individual plant managers rather than to 

any regulations standards within the company as a whole.17 

Safety measures became an issue when the union 

uncovered the information concerning an acciden t in Neuhoff's 

Union City, Tanna ssee plant 'Where steam pressure bull t in 

a pipe and finally exploded, killing one worker instantly. 

16,'Full Union Campaign Backs Local 405 in Frosty 
Morn Strike, 11 Butcher Workman, July, August , l968, page 44. 

17 Ibid., page 4. 



12 

Another man injured in the explosion died eight days later:8 

No evidence was displayed that other Neuhoff plants were 

as guilty of negligence as the plant in Union City. Yet 

good safety equipment and careful maintenance became goals 

of the company and union alike. 

During the strike, some workers brought up _the 

issue of company harassment. The issue never became that 

expansive unless the worker could prove that her harassment 

was because of her union affiliation. All contracts 

proposals did include a clause wich would forbid company 

harassment of workers. 

Negotiati ons on working conditions were among the 

first issues discusse d and agre ed upon by union, company, 

and workers in the 1967 contract. These negotiations and 

decisions were brought to a hal t by the strike starting on 

April 15, 1968. 

18"An Empire Built on Low Wages , 11 But cher Worlanan, 
January, 1969, page 3. 'Ibi s article al~o tells that the 

ffi · al at the plant allowed -cha workers to take company o ci s . k d 
off for the funeral of the wo rkers who died but doc e 
them for t ime l ost f or the event . 



Chapter II 

FROSTY MORN PLANTS 
EARLY ORGAlHZATIONAL ATTEMPTS 

Tha Frosty Morn plant in Clarksville is only one 

of the many plants owned by Lorenz Neuhoff. The Tennessee 

Packers, of -which Frosty Morn is a division, sells through­

out the South, only having recently expanded to Northern 

cities like New York, Philadelphia, Baltimore, and 

Chicago.
1 

Most of the Neuhoff plants are located in the 

South predominantly in the states of Virginia, Alabama, 

Florida, Tennessee, and North Carolina. 2 

The Frosty Mom plant in Clarksville has a large 

business in I1iddle Tennossee. The plant in 1968 sold to 

Clarksville and Nashville predominantly. In Clarksville, 

Frosty Morn sold its meat products to fourteen stores 

ranging from chain stores like the A & P and Kroger to 

independent grocers like Davenport's to hotel restaurants 

like the Royal York.3 In Nashville, Frosty More supplied 

leur St~le. 
by the Ami!gamataMeat 
America, AFL-CIO. 

2Ibid. 

Directed by Bill Neebe. Produced 
Cutters and Butcher Workmen, North 

3"Frosty M:>rn Sells To ," Bulleti::1 Board and Communi­
cations, Union Records. 



14 

to independent grocers, chains, and to the Farmer's Market 

Warehouse, but in certain areas of the city, they sell only 

to one particular type of store. For instance, in East 

Nashville they sell only to independent grocers.4 

In 1968, the plant received meat for curing from 

many different areas. Plants like SWift in st. Louis, 

Armour in Louisville, Lovett Meats in Whites Creek, Hormel 

in 11inneapolis, and New Zealand Refining Company in 

Canterbury sold to Frosty Morn.5 

M:>st of the supplies for tha Clarksville plant we ... •e 

supplied from areas other than the ?½>ntgomery County area. 

Materials were shipped from plants in Nashville, Toledo, 

Charlotte, Kalamazoo, Atlanta, and Clifton. 6 

• 
Tha Fro sty Mom Plant employed approximately thl'ee 

hundred from the Clarksville and surrounding area. 7 

Besides the Goodyear plant on Marion Street and the Trane 

plant on Clarksville Highway, few other industries in 

Clarksville were as important to the community in the sense 

of providing employment. Yet, unlike the Goodyear and Trane 

4Ibid. 

5"Recei ve s Meat for Curing, 11 Bulletin Board and 
Cummunications, Union Records. 

6"Materials supplied, 11 Bulletin Board and Communi­
cations, Union Records. 

7National Labor Relations Board complaint form, 
December l5, 1968. Craig Y.• Tennessee Packers, Union Records • 

• 



plants, the Frosty Morn plant was not yet unionized nor 

had it ever bean. 

The AMC reported that they had been interested in 

organizing a union in Clarksville since 1949. In 1949, 

15 

the {'MC tried to organize the workers at the Kleeman Packing 

Company. The plant was owned by the mayor of Clarksville, 

William IO.eeman. The IG.eeman Packing Company was located 

at the present site of the Frosty Morn plant. In the 1949 

organizational attempt, a strike was called but it was 

defeated. 8 

In 1953, the Teamsters Local '32-7 under the leader­

ship of Don Vestal and A. c. Sloan enlisted truck drivers 

at the Frosty Morn plant into their Teamsters Local. When 

the men joined the Teamsters, Vestal and Sloan asked the 

company for union recognition and negotiations for a con­

tract. Both were refused. 

In the same year as the Teamstors' organizational 

attempt of truck drivers, the AMC had begun organization 

of the workers in the plant. With the enlistment of the 

members, they too asked for negotiations and an election in 

which they hoped to become tho bargaining agents for the 

workers. Frosty Morn refused. 

8 • t view with Ronald Sloan, Secretary-
Personal in er d Met Cutters and Butcher Work-

Treasurer of the ~alg:tt~IO ~onducted on January 26, 1973. 
men of North Ameri~a, - d, t din ~riting due to his 
Mr. Sloan I s interview was con uc e 
recant surgery for cancer of the throat. 



At this point the Teamsters and the AMC staged a 

joint strike effort to win negotiations and possible 

recognition. After sixty days, the Teamsters capitulated 

in the strike effort; however, the AMC continued for 

16 

another thirty days including into their negotiations the 

truck drivers abandoned by the Teamsters. 9 After the ninety 

day strike effort, the union still failed to win any 

negotiations. Frosty Morn merely accepted the strikers 

back to work. The company claimed that the strike had 

exerted no innuence on their production since they had 

lost no time due to the strike. 10 

Ronald Sloan, Secretary-Treasurer of the union, 

says that his union withdrew organization from 1957-1959. 

Unionization attempts did occur under the jurisdiction or 

the United Packinghouse Workers. Th.is union failed to win 

the votes necessary by which they would win the bargaining 

power for the plant.11 

lOrnterview with E. c. Moore, g~neral manager of 
Clarksville Frosty Morn plant in 1953 conducted February 
20, 1973. 

11sioan interview, January 26, 1973. Sloan blamed 
the company for interference 'Which he claimed was the pri­
mary reason for the failure of t he 1959 strike. 



Beginning again in 1961, the AMC once again began 

its attempts to win the .right to become the bargaining 

agent tor the Frosty Morn 'WOrker~ of Clarksville. 

17 



Chapter III 

ORGANIZATIONAL ATTEMPTS AFTER 1961 

The AMC resumed attempts to organize and establish 

a union at the Clarksville Frosty Morn plant in 1961. 

They tried various methods of encouraging workers in the 

plant to come to union meetinGs. Union members from other 

plants throughout the AMC 1 s jurisdiction were brought in 

to discuss the benefits of being a union member and to 

encourage Frosty Morn's employees to join. 

Special social outings were arranged so that the 

union's members and officials could meet Frosty Morn 

employees. Once the desire for a union was established 

union buttons were sent to the prospective union members. 

New members were urged to be open about their union 

affiliation. These new members were urged to recruit other 

workers in their plant for membership in the union. 

As the union became more open and ambitious in its 

attempt to become the bargaining agent for the Clarksville 

plant, they urged the prospective members of the Clarksville 

area to join them in writing a contract proposal to be 

presented to management. 

The union wanted every chance to meet employees 

and ply them with union propaganda but denied the charges 



made by the company that the union was responsible in any 

way for trouble in the plant or that they had been guilty 

of any unlawful acts in their organizational attempts.1 

Prior to the 1963 union election, Ronald Sloan, 
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Seer tary-Treasurer of the union, wrote a letter to Clay 

Barnes, Frosty Morn General Manager, in which he accused 

Barnes of forcing workers to attend meetings held on company 

time in which Sloan felt that Barnes was attempting to 

deprive the workers of their right to organize, form, and 
2 

join the union of their choice. Sloan requested equal 

time and facilities for the union to counter the company 

speeches. Sloan told Barnes that he thought Barnes should 

"respect the law and the rights of the workers in the 

future. 113 

The union held many of its meetings and socials 

at the Rubber Workers' meeting hall and were open in their 

urging of the workers to come to the meetings and be 

organized. workers were urged openly to attend meetings 

as union members so that the company could see thd strength 

of the union and thus the strength of the workers to achieve 

the goals and reforms they had in mind. 

1113 • al Notice " September, 1963, Frosty Morn in 
peci , U 'on Records. No record 

Correspondence with Employees.tl owhi t unlawful acts the 
the union files indicates e.xac Y a 
union was guilty of performing. 

2 ald Sloan to Clay Barnes, August 
Letter from Ron ndence--Employer, Union Records. 

15, 1963, Frosty Morn Correspo 

3rbid. 
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Despite the apparent success or· the union, all 

workers were not anxious to join. The union implied that 

this reaotion was not dominant among workers. Some workers 

saw the union's organizational attempts as detrimental to 

their right to work and function as employees at the Frosty 

Morn plant. Martha Jean Rogers was one such employee who 

filed suit with the National Labor Relations Board.4 She 

charged in her complaint filed October 17, 1963 that the 

AMC had re~trained and coerced her in their organizational 

attempts at Frosty Morn. This restraint and coercion 

violated her rights under Section 7-A of the National Labor 

Relations Act. This case was, however, withdrawn on 

November 19, 1963 with no explanation.5 

Some workers joined together in a committee called 

the Anti-Union Committee which was apparently designed to 

rally support to keep the union out of the plant. From 

the few incidents in the union records, the Anti-Union 

Comniittee primarily held meetings at the same time the union 

held its meetings in order to counter the unioniiation 

attempts. Generally the committee's meetings were held at 
6 

the Miller's Club House on Swift Drive in Clarksville. 

~ational Labor Relations Board will hereinafter 
be abbreviated as NLRB. 

5union Records carry record of the complaint but 
no notice as to why the complaint was dropped. 

/.... Election Victory, August 29, 
~Leaflet for Union Board and communications, Union 

1963, Frosty Morn Bulletin 
Records. 
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It seems obvious that some workers tried to protect their 

right to work and remained dubious or those who thought the 

union could give them benefits better than those already 

given by the company. 

Prior to the election vote, the union urged Frosty 

Morn workers to come to meetings so that a union contract 

could be readied for the negotiations after the election. 

News of the upcoming election was spread to the workers 

through these meetings as was other information about thA 

union, its activities, and 'What it meant to be a union 

member. 7 In these notices for meetings the union also 

pointed out that workers could receive a much higher wage 

as a union member than without the union. It was pointed 

out as an example that an experienced butcher would receive 

$3.305 an nour and that workers with no experience could 
8 

receive as much as $2.165. 

In a letter from Ronald Sloan to E. C. Moore of 

Frosty Morn six days prior to the election, Sloan requested 

that the AMC be recognized as bargaining agent for all 

Frosty Morn employees excluding management, office person-

1 This would also exclude eel, guards, and sales personne • 

livestock buyers and specialists, clerical workers, air 

7 "S ial Notice " April 6, 1963, Frosty Morn 
pee ' Union Records• Correspondence with Employees. 

81bid. 



pilots, foremen, and supervisors. This was a formality 

which rece:J.ved no answer. 
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The union urged workers to go to the ballot box 

with confidence that the union would win. They emphasized 

the secret ballot as they had told people that they could 

not legally be fired for their union activity. The union 

felt that their success would have been greater if more 

people had not feared for their job if they had union 

affiliation.
9 

On August 29, 1963, an election was held to deter­

mine whether or not there would be a union at the Frosty 

Morn plant and whether or not the AMC would be the bargain­

ing agent for this union. The NLRB's strict rules were 

applied to the election.10 The AMC lost the election but 

appealed the results to the NLRB oc a technical basis. A 

new election was set for 1964. 

The union met with prospective union members on 

January 16, 1964 for a contract proposal. This meeting 

was held at the home of Carrie Bowers, a union member, and 

most of the proposals centered around issues affecting the 

truck drivers who would be included in the AMC contract if 

9rbid. 

lOsee Appendix for the special "Instructions to 
the Election Observer11 which was issued by the NLRB. 
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the union won the election. The truck drivers were anxious 

to include such issues as helpers for out of town runs. 

They wanted larger allowances for meals and allowances for 

uniforms. A minimum wage of $3.00 an hour was discussed. 

Drivers wanted a one day notice for all trips as well as 

the ability to lease out runs which they no longer wanted. 

A premium for night work was to be included extending to 

people in the plant also. The contract proposal was vecy 

general and broad with merely generalizations for topics 

to be considered for the final contract. This meeting 

showed workers that the union was willing fully to support 

them. 

Throughout 1964 the union held meetings concerning 

the possibility of contract proposals. The union officials 

urged all interested parties to aid in the writing of a 

rough draft of a contract. As usual the union continued to 

try to obtain more a_nd more members to help their possi­

bilities of winning the new election. 

continued negotiations with the company ~ere 

J.·n order to fix the date for the ne~ election. necessary 

appeared to be locked in debate 'Iha union and the company 

The union sug-over what day would be most appropriate. 

d t f June 20 :1 gested the date of June 19 and an alternate a e o 

i to John Reynolds, NLRB 26 
llLetter from John S nger 26-RC-2030, Union Records. 

District, May 15, 1964, NLRB case 
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Frosty Morn rejected these dates on the basis that the 

election should be held on a Friday or Saturday in order 

that all truck drivers could vote. Finally the date of May 

30 was established for the new election.12 

The union lost the 1964 election by a vote of one 

hundred forty to one hundred fifteen. They then challenged 

thirty-nine ballots which were cast against the union.1 3 

when the votes were challenged, the case was heard by the 

NLRB. The union, of course, hoped that they would win all 

the challenged votes or have the election set aside as 

they had done in 1963. 

On August 14, 1964, H. I. Meyer, Hearing Officer 

of the NLRB, sustained the union's position regarding 

fifteen of the thirty-nine votes while ruling the other . 
twenty-fou~ were improperly challenged.14 Although this 

gave the union the election, they still had to wait for a 

decision from the NLRB either confirming or rejecting 

Meyer's decision. Cecil Branstetter, union attorney, 

thinking that the NLRB likely would set aside the election, 

wrote Sloan that in reality, he believed the union had a 

good chanca of becoming the bargaining agent in event of 

12Ibid. 
13 ald Sloan to Leon schacter, April 

Letter from
6

RoCAn 20 ~
3 

and 26-RC-2030, Union Record& 
15, 1966, NLRB case 2 - - ✓ 

14 ruled challenges and those 
See Appendix for over 

sustained. 
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such NLRB action.15 The union kept close contact with 

Fro sty Morn employees with assurance that they would notify 

the employees at the Plant as soon as any word came as to 

whether the union was the certified bargaining agent. 

On December 11, 1964, a NLRB committee composed of 

McCUlloch, Brown, and Leedon sustained the decision of the 

hearing officer and thus recognized the AMC as the lawful 

bargaining agent of the employees of Frosty Morn.16 

The union's challenges were recognized as valid on 

the basis that one of the voters was not an employee in 

the plant, that two had no community of interest, and that 

four were clerical workers with the other seven being 

supervisors. 

Prior to becoming the aut horized bargaining agent, 

the AMC had several conflic t s wi th James Fuqua, President 

of the Independent Workers Association. 17 Tlle AMC urged 

its prospective members to stay away from meeting with 

Fuqua. The union felt that the IWA was a company union. 

Fuqua urged Frosty Morn employees to refrain from joining 

the AMC; he also told employees that by joining the union 

they would lose any benefits the company was already 

15tetter from Cecil Branstetter to Ronald Sloan, 
October 4, 1964, NLRB case 26-CA-2O3O, Union Records. 

lC>r,etter from Ronald Sloan to Leon Schacter April 19, 
1966, NLRB case 26-CA-2O53 and 26-RC-2O3O, Union Records. 

17Hereinafter abbreviated as IWA. 



offering. Fuqua argued that there would not be extra 

bonuses or savings for the employees if the union came to 

1 t J.B Fu the Pan • qua also warned that profit sharing from 

26 

vending machines could be stopped if the union was brought 

into the plant. 

Frosty Morn workers also were warned by Fuqua that 

their earnings would decline while prices like hospital 

. . d 19 prenuurns increase • He warned employees that as union 

members th3y would earn only on a forty hour week and that 

their union dues would be at least five dollars a week. 

He also pointed out that Frosty Morn did not have to bar­

gain with the union bu~ could take the option of closing 

down the plant rather than lose high profits if the union 

was acceptsd. 

The union, on the other hand, urged people neither 

to listen to Fuqua nor to attend his meetings which were 

generally held at Miller's Club House. The union tried to 

schedule socials at the same time that Fuqua scheduled his 

anti-union meetings. Union offi cials told workars that 

he did because he was "cuddled" by the 
Fuqua could say what 

bosses. 20 Instead of answering Fuqua, s charges , the union 

18Leaflet by 
date stated. Frosty 
Records. 

James Fuqua and Martha Jean Rogers, no 
Morn Correspondence--Employees, Union 

19Ibid. 
20 ald Sloan to Employees, October 14, 

Letter from Ron d nce--Employees, Union Records. 
1964, Frosty Morn Correspon e 
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merely pro~~sed growth and prosperity to union members if 

the union was accepted. 

Fuqua was not the only person fearful of what a 

union would bring to the workers. In a letter dated 

October 18, 1965, Walter O I Sheen expressed his doubts about 

a union at Frosty Morn.
21 

0 1 Sb.een said that he felt that 

the company gave good benefits already. He urged Sloan 

to think carefully before taking any action against Frosty 

Morn. He was speaking specifically about the union's 

proposal to call a strike agains t Frosty Morn in which 

they would protest the unfair labor practices of the 

company. 0 1 Sheen asked Sloan to pray to God before taking 

22 such action against the company. 

Once the NLRB recognized the AMC as the bargaining 

23 agent, the union notified the worke rs . Al though the 

union was able to announce its recognition as bargaining 

agent, it also was ready to admit that as yet Frosty Morn 

had failed to set a date on which t o meet the union and 

make arrangements to write a contract. 24 The AMr: promised 

21Letter from Walter O'Sheen to Ronald Sloan, 
October 18, 1965, Frosty Morn Correspondence--Employer, 
Union Records. 

22Ibid. 

23To Production and Maintenance,_October ~8, 1964, 
Frosty Morn Correspondence--Eroployee, Union Recor s. 
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to notify the ~rorkers as soon as such an · t agreemen was 

made. The workers were assured that a letter had been 

drafted to the plant manager requesting collective bargain­

ing to begin sometime in January. 25 

On December 22, 1964, Sloan t wro e to Lorenz Neuhoff, 

owner of the Frosty Morn plant, and requested a meeting 

date with either Neuhoff or his representative to establish 

rates, wages, hours, and other working conditions for the 

production workers, maintenance workers, and truck drivers 

at the Clarksville plant. 26 After having met their objec­

tions to the original draft as to their desires, Sloan 

requested that the officials at Frosty Morn meet with the 

union's officials in the second week of January. If this 

was not a convenient date, Neuhoff was to notify the union 

and suggest another date. 27 

Many of the 1964 attempts to reach an agreement as 

a convenieut date to begin collective bargaining with 

Frosty Morn failed due to the company's unwillingness to 

cooperate. 

In a February 16, 1965 letter to E. C. Moore, 

t d a proposal from the manager of the plant, Sloan reques e 

251bid. 
6 Sloan to Lorenz Neuhoff, 

2 Letter from Ronald Correspondeoce--Employee, 
December 22, 1964, Frosty Morn 
Union Records. 

27 Ibid. 



employers for a contract negotiation. There is no record 

of an answer. On March 19, 1965, Sloan wrote to Moore in 

29 

answer to a letter he had received.28 In this letter, 

Sloan acknowledged that although Fro ty Morn considered the 

NLRB decision illegal, the 1964 election had been won by 

the union ~nd thus Frosty 1-t>rn must bargain in good faith. 

Sloan denied that the union used the employees as pawns; 

he also denied the statement supposedly made by Moore that 

"certain of our competitors are urging you to organize our 

employees so that we can be rendered less flexible, less 

efficient, and of course, with resulting loss of business. 1129 

Sloan also denied that the union would pull the workers out 

on strike; he pointed out that if there was a strike that 

it would be the result of a democratic vote. 30 Sloan 

requested that the company adhere to the law and bargain 

with the union. 

When Moore retired Clay Barnes became plant manager. 

still the union had as little success with Barnes as they 

had had with Moore. on June 8, 1965, Tom Kenney wrote to 

Barnes requesting a meeting in which the work of the 

28There is no 
union files. 

copy of Moore's le tter to Sloan in 

29rietter 
19, 1965, Frosty 
Records. 

Ronald Sloan to E. C. Moore, March 
~~~~ Correspondence--Employer, Union 

30ibid. • 
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employees would be discussed. Kenne~maintained in this 

letter that workers were doing 
more than human nature could 

endure. 31 

When attempts like this also proved fruitless, the 

union wrote to George Gardner, attorney for Frosty Morn. 

In a letter to Gardner dated March, 1965, the union sug­

gested that perhaps time would be saved if the company and 

union jointly drew up a contract so that problems were 

solved on the spot• Ronald Sloan requested a date set for 

this method of negotiations. He told Gardner that the 

union was available anytime--day, night, or weekends.32 

Although the union tried by various means to 

achieve collective bargaining, they did cot succeed in 1964. 

In March of 1965, the union filed charges against Frosty 

Morn for f~ilure to negotiate. On June 10 Stanley Ohlbaum, 

NLRB officer, issued a Reconnnendation Order that Frosty 

Morn cease and desist restraining and coercing the 

employees in attempts at organization. He suggested that 

the company post notices in conspicuous places ad:.nitting 

their recognition of the union once negotiation began. 

August 31, 1965, a NLRB committee composed of McCUlloch, 

On 

31Letter from Tom Kenney to Clay Barnes, June~ 
1965, Frosty Morn Correspondence--Employer, Union Reoo s. 

32Letter from Ronald Sloan to George Gardner, March 
12, 1965, George v. Gardner, Union Records. 



Brown, and Jenkins adoptad the findings an·d 
recommendations 

of Ohlbawn. 

In September, 1965 th , e company officials notified 
workers via the bulletin b d oar that the NLRB decision was 
being appealed.33 

The union records also h h sow tat the AMC requested 

strike sanction against Frosty Morn for an unfair labor 

practice ~trike. It was planned that local funds would 

finance the strike with minor aid from Chicago. Sloan 

seemed to feel that the strike would not last long since 

it was not an economic strike.34 

Re,~ords seem to indicate that a minor strike did 

take place in protest of Frosty Morn's unfair labor 

practices. Sloan made a trip to Chicago to familiarize the 

International with the vicious employer and the bad 

situation faced in Clarksville. 35 'lb.a strike was called in 

order to obtain bargaining and emphasis was continually 

placed on the fact that the strike was not an economic one.36 

The strike vote was taken on August 3, 1965 and according 

33E c Moore to Employees, no date stated, Frosty 
Morn Bulletin Board and communications, Union Records. 

34Strike sanction showed two hundred and seventy 
in bargaining unit. 

3~Letter from Ronald Sloan to Tom Lloyd, August 16, 
1965, Strike Sanction, Union Records. 

36Ibid. 
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to a letter f rom Gardner t Sl 0 oan, the strike was settled 
around August 16.37 

Th~ union stayed in contact with the employees via 

the bulletin board at the plant. '!hey liked to relate 

their accomplishments. ,.,.__ d ti 4 uey aver sad the strikes, the 

union meetings, the NLRB decisions. It was also via this 

bulletin board that they became aware of the activities of 

James Fuqua and the DIA. 

Fu~ua continued agitat ion agai nst the union after 

the election; he told those wh_o f avored the union that they 

were very close to being l a ckeys of Sloan .38 At this time 

Fuqua also charged that people i n t he union were only 

trying to harass the company and buil d t he business of the 

company's competitors.39 

Fu~ua re sisted union organization even afte r the 

vote recognized the un i on. In l etters posted on t he bulle­

tin board he told workers that the management woul d t ell 

them all they needed to know and that joining the union 

would in no way solve their pr oblems . He suggested t hat by 

bringing in a union p r oblems would only remain st i rred up, 

37Le tte r from Geo rge Gardner t o Ronald Sloan, 
August 16, 1965, Strike sanction, Union Records . 

38No~e from Jame s Fuqua to Employees , A~~s t 
1965, Strike ~San ction--Frosty Morn and Kroger, 0 on 

25, 
Records. 



whereas, the workers could maintain harmony by keeping the 
"0 union out • ...,. · 

33 

Fuqua also told employees that getting a union 

would force Frosty Morn to operate at a loss and thus the 

company would be forced to lower salaries or close the 

plant. He cited the Swift plant in Evansville which was 

AMC unionized as an example of a plan t which operated at a 

loss after the union was inst i tuted and thus closed. He 

also said that workers in the plants in Atlanta were forced 

to take a decreuse pay once the union was established. He 

predicted the same actions for Clarksville. lµ 

Of course, the union was also using the bulletin 

board to counte r the charges made by the IWA . Any progress 

they made 1ooked good and calmed the fears constantly being 

aroused by the Fuqua organization . 

More attemp t s to bring Frosty '1orn to the bargaining 

table were futile. Even the NLRB ' s decision failed to rally 

the officials at the plant. By 1966, the union still had 

not met and negotiated with the Frosty Morn officials 

although i~ had been two years since their recogni tion by 

the NLRB as the official representative of the workers. 

40Note from IWA to Employees , August 8, 1965, Frosty 
Morn Bulletin Board and Communicati ons, Union Re cords. 

41 Fu ua t o Employees, Novem~er 8, 1?65, 
F James t~ Board and connnunicat1ons, Union 
rosty Morn Bulle in 

Records. 



Chapter IV 

NLRB DECISIONS ON BEHALF OF 
FROSTY MORN EMPLOYEES 

Dti:--ing the organization process, the AMC entered 

cases with the NLRB over the company,s failure to meet and 

bargain in good faith. 1 The union also supported workers 

from the plant who attempted to sue Frosty Morn for alleged 

unfair labor practices or for the firing of an individual 

because that person was believed to be a union member. 

On~ of the longer and more hectic cases taken to 

the NLRB revolved around Claudine Warren and Ophelia 

Hutchinson. The two women were transferred to the Bacon 

Department from the Smoked Meats Department inside the 

Clarksville plant. They were replacing two employees from 

the Bacon Department wo were out sick. \\bile working in 

the Bacon Department, they were discharged from the plant. 

The company said the women were discharged for failure to 

comply with company rules; lolhereas, Warren and Hutchinson 

supported by the union felt that they were fired because 

of their union affiliation. The union began extecded 

litigation on behalf of the women for their f'ull reinstate-

ment with f'ull backpay. 

lsee next chapter for details. 
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OP- January 17, 1964, the Trial Examiner or the NLRB 

handed down a decision that Frosty Morn should cease and 

desist discouraging union membership and interrogating 

employees in regard to their union activities. 2 The Trial 

Examiner found Frosty Morn guilty or violation or Section 

8(a)(l) lbich makes interference, restraint, or coercion 

of employee organization illegal whether the attempts are 

successful or not. 

The decision of the Trial Examiner also prompted 

the NLRB to rule that Ophelia Hutchinson should be fully 

reinstated with the necessary compliance for backpay as 

set down by the NLRB. 

Although the decision had been made by the Trial 

Examiner of the NLRB, a letter dated January 1, 1965 from 

John Reynolds of District 26 of t he NLRB t o Frosty Morn 

attorney, George Gardner, states that both Warren and 

Hutchinson should be reinstated with notices posted sixty 

days conseJutively that the company had complied with rein­

statement.3 Reynolds also set a meeting for March 3, 1965 

at 9 :00 to discuss the requirements t he NLRB would set 

down in relation to a backpay scale for t he women• 

2Letter from Ronald Sloan to Leon Schacter, January 
17, 1964, NLRB case 26-CA-1388, Union Records. 

3 J h Reynolds to George Gardner, 
Lette r from O n 26 _CA-lJ88 Union Records. 

Jarruary 26, 1965, NLRB case ' 
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After the 0rder came for the reinstatement of the 

two, a legnl battle ensued in which Frosty Morn argued with 

various decisions of the NLRB, especially decisions 

relating to a backpay settlement with regard to Hutchinson 

and Warren. Arguments ranged from 'Whether the company was 

willing to hold meetings on backpay in Clarksville or 

Nashville
4 

to the amending of briefs by removing certain 

words and inserting others which the company felt better 

explained their position, 5 and to the amending of the back-
6 pay settlement. 

Once the NLRB decision for reinstatement had been 

handed down, Frosty Morn tried to reach an agreement with 

the NLRB in relation to the necessary backpay to be paid 

the women for time lost. Fred Holroyd, attorney for Frosty 

Morn, argued that the women should be paid on the scale for 

the Smoked Meats Department rather than the scale for the 

Bacon Department; Holroyd argued that the women had been 

employed in the Bacon Department only temporarily and would 

have returned to the Smoked Meats Department. HA cited as 

proof the fact that the two workers they were replacing had 

~tter from George Gardner to J?bn Reynolds, 
August 3, 1965, NLRB case 26-CA-1388 , Union Records. 

5Letter from Fred Holroyd to Trial Examiner of 
NLRB Jul 13 l965 NLRB case 26-CA-1388 , Union Records. 
The ~ompa~y f~l t it' necessary to drop tho word shall and 
add the wo ~d may. 

6Ibid. 

• 
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returned only a couple of days after uarren 
"' and Hutchinson 

had been dismissed. 

Holroyd also wanted to deduct hospitalization 

insurance :rom any backpay the women were to. be paid. The 

NLRB had already rejected both of the company's proposals. 

The company took no positive action. When no action had 

been taken on reinstatement by June, 1966, Reynolds notified 

Frosty Morn that if compliance to the NLRB ruling did not 

occur soon the Board would find it necessary to seek an 

enforcement order from Washington. 7 

Claudine Warren had been offe ed her job back on 

the nineteenth of April. The company offered her the same 

wage that she had been making when she had been released, 

but she was unable to return at that time because she had 

not been released from her doctor's care. Her medical 
8 

situation was confirmed by Dr. Iglehart. 

Kay Fisher, attorney for the NLRB, handled the 

final stages of the backpay dispute. It was her decision 

that the backpay should be computed from the Bacon Depart­

ment wages as that was the department in which the women 

were working wen they were discharged. Fisher also decided 

7Letter from John Reynolds to George Gardner, June 
21, 1966, NLRB case 26-CA-1388, Union Records. 

8Letter from Dr. Sugg to warren, April 22, 1966, 
NLRB case 26-CA-1388, Union Reco rds • 



that the beckpay should include the raises granted to the 

Bacon Department since the discharge or Warren and 

Hutchinson. The raises included~ on May 4, 1963; 5¢ on 

September 7, 1963; '2½.¢ on 22 of February, 1964,9 

The backpay settlement would be exclusive or the 

times when Warren and Hutchinson had found other work during 

the period of 1964-65. Warren had been employed at the 

Clarksville Nursing Homa and the Henry Newhouse Malt Shop 

and had eat>ned $2,197.48 since her dismissal from the 

plant.10 Hutchinson had earned $1,423.91 since her 

dismissal •11 

Fisher also ruled that Warren be reinstated with 

seniority rights dating from January, 1949 and a backpay 

settlement of $8,683.12 Hutchinson was reinstated with 

seniority rights dating from 1959 with a backpay settlement 

of $10,231.13 The backpay would be inclusive or six per­

cent interest per annum and the necessary withholding taJCea 

9Decision of Kay Fisher, 26 District of NLRB, NLRB 
case 26-CA-1388, Union Records. 

lOna.ckpay Coq,utation for Claudine Warren, NLRB 
case 26-CA-1388, Union Records. 

llBackpay Computation for Ophelia Hutchinson , NLRB 
case 26-CA-1,388, Union Records. 

12conclusions of Kay Fisher, 26 District or NLRB, 
NLRB case 26-CA-1388, Union Records. See Appendix for 
Warren's Backpay Settlement. 

13Ibid. See Appendix for Hutchinson, s Backpay 
Settlement. 
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would be wi tha.rawn • Date for compliance was set tor 

December 27, 1965.14 

Frosty Morn accepted the findings and paid the 

women at a rate of $125 a week minus $32 from Warren's check 

for a Departmental Employment Security.15 Warren still ,did 

not return immediately to work because of her illness llhioh 

her doctor confirmed.16 

'lhe union also helped Joe Poole, a union man, in 

his case against Frosty Morn. Poole believed that he had 

been dismissed because of company surveillance prompted by 

his union activities. The union stated that they had 

witnesses who could verify the story that Poole had been 

discharged for his union affiliation rather than failure to 

perform his job.17 The union maintained that the firing of 

Poole was ~ot an isolated incident,18 but that it was a 

typical incident of company attempts to hinder union 

activity. The NLRB ruled that Poole had had minimal union 

14Ibid. 

15tetter from Cecil Branstetter to Tom Kenney, 
October 27, l965, NLRB case 26-CA-1388, Union Records. 

16This is the same reason she would continue post­
poning returning. 

17 f Cecil Branstetter to John Reynolds, 
Letter rom 26 CA 2018-2 Union Records. 

March 25, 1965, NLRB case - - ' 

18
Ibid. 



activity and had been discharged for violation or company 

ruies. 19 
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The union had little success with the case involving 

J. Herndon, Shirley Holt, and Ophelia Hutchinson. This was 

Hutchinson's second case. John Reynolds of District 26 of 

the NLRB aJsigned James Walpole to investigate the case in 

which the people claimed discrimination as the reason for 

their dismissal. Frosty Morn claimed that the three were 

temporarily laid-off. The NLRB ruled OD February 23, 1966 

that there was no evidence of discrimination especially 

since no one had been hired, transferred, or assigned to 
20 

the jobs from which these people were dismissed. As a 

result of the NLRB findings, no complaint was issued 

against Frosty Morn in this case. 

The union was involved in several other oases 

which lacked the spectacular success of cases like the one 

i i d H t hie OD ~ese cases d.id show that nvolv ng Warren an u c s • .LU 

the AMC wanted to aid the workers. Union records show that 

the union took up the oases of Lloyd Floyd a.od Leon 

Eldridge. Floyd had been employed in the Slaughter Depart­

ment and claimed that he was discharged because of h.is 

union activity; whereas, Clay Barnes, plant manager, 

16, 

23, 

19 1 Herman to Cecil Branstetter, April 
Trial Exam n6eCrA 2018-2 Union Records. 

1965, NLRB case 2 - - ' 
20 Renolds to the Union, February 

Letter from6JCo~n23oi Union Records. 
1966, NLRB case 2 - - ' 



related that Floyd had been released for tardiness and 

failure to comply with company rules. 
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Eldridge had been dismissed because of a fight with 

Joe Bowens. Eldridge claimed there had been similar 

disturbances before this one in which he was fired, and 

that Bowens was retained. Eldridge argued that the fact 

that Bowens was a relative of a Frosty Morn supervisor in 

Union City figured into the decision . to keep Bowens on the 

payroll. 

Union records show no outcome for either case 

although there are records showing negotiation between Floyd 

and Barnes regarding the company's willingness to reconsider 

Floyd for omployment. Another man was laid-off for Floyd's 

return, but he failed to show. The case of Robert Tramil, 

an employee also claiming to have been fired for union 

activity was dropped on November 12, 1965 for lack of 

evidence. 21 Martha Jean Rogers filed a complaint against 

the AMC for restraining and coercing her rights under the 

National Labor Relations Act, but on November 19, 1963, she 

withdrew her complaint. 22 

In the NLRB case of Myrtle Lane, a woman who had 

been dismissed after injuring her back while lifting a 

21 T ial Examiner Harrington to Ronald 
Letter from r . 26-CA-2233, Union 

Sloan, November 12, 1965, NLRB case 
Records. 

Reynolds to Union, November 19, 22Lette P from John 
1963, NLRB case 26-CB-230, Union Records. 
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large box, Froat y l-k>rn offered to rehire her at her old 

job, Lane was informed that she should report to work, 

Lane, however, was unable to return to work because or 

lUI11bar sacral disorders which would be aggravated by bending 

and stooping and because of allergic bronchitis which 

would be aggravated by work around refrigeration. Lane was 

unable to return to work at this time but she provided the 

company with notices from her doctors which would confirm 

her refusal to return to work. 23 

In a 1965 decision, the NLRB ruled that employee 

M. Latta had been forced to retire because of her 

pregnancy and for no other reason. She had previously been 

discriminated against by time cuts and lay-offs, John 

Langley of the NLRB suggested that the Board have Prosty 

Morn reinstate her, A committee sustained this decision. 24 

In several cases in 1966 the NLRB found Frosty Moro 

guilty of violating employees' rights under Section 8{a){l) 

of the National Labor Relations Act. Under this section 

the employer is guilty of coercion, interference. or 

threats whether his actions are successful or not. 

Engagement in such conduct is proof enough. The NLRB round 

23 t "To Whom It May Concern," May 
Dr, James Hamp on, • Richard Young, 'To 

17, 1966, Myrtle Lan~, Uni~8 R~96ts~p. cit.; Paul Murphy, 
Whom It May Concern, Ma7, M' 17 l966 op, cit. 
"To Whom It May Concern, ay ' ' 

24NLRB Decisions, 9562; 1965• 
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that in the case of Williford liho had been laid orr, 

BuJllPers who' was fired and not rehired, Gough who had been 

moved to another job, Bumpers lbo had been moved to another 

more strenuous job Frosty ?-i,rn had violated Section 8(a) (1). 

Trial examiner Louis Libbin suggested reinstatement and the 

NLRB sustained the decision. 25 

The union action with the NLRB was helpful in 

building morale at the plant. Such actions showed the 

wcrkars that the union was thinking of their welfare. It 

paved the way for the court case later. 

25 20 211· 1966. NLRB Decision , , 



Chapter V 

UNION TAKES FROSTY MORN TO COURT 

On~ of the most extensive cases with the NLRB 

revolved around the union's recognition by the company once 

it had been certified aa the bargaining agent by the NLRB. 

Frosty Morn continued to refuse to bargain. 

The union had filed charges for a new election 

after the 1963 election was set aside. In the 1964 elec­

tion, Hearing Officer, H. I. Meyer of the NLRB, had 

overruled twenty-four challenges while accepting fifteen 

1 of thirty-nine as properly challenged. On December 11, 

1964, a NLRB appeals committee certified the union as the 

bargaining agent by upholding Meyer's decision. 

In March, 1965, the union filed charges with the 

NLRB charging that Frosty Morn failed to comply with the 

decision and refused to bargain with the union. Stanley 

Ohlbaum investigated the charges and decided in favor of 

the union. His decision was: 

1. a. 

b. 

That the company should cease and desist 
from failure to meet and bargain in good 
faith. 

nd desist ioterferriog with the 
~~r~~,: efforts to meet and negotiate. 

to Leon Schacter, April 
l1etter from Ronald Sloan 26-CA-2053, Union Record& 

19, 1966, NLRB case 26-RC-2030 aDtl 



c. 

d. 

2. a. 

b. 

~=:~;a!~f desist interferring with, 
defin d bng and coercing employees as 

e Y Section 7-A. 

cea~e and desist interferring with the 
emp oyeeS' rights of self-organization. 

Ubpon request from the union meet and 
argain in good faith. 

post notices of union recognition and 
not interfere with the union's exer- · 
cising its rights.2 
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A NLRB cozmnittee adopted the findings of the Hearing Offi-

cer, Ohlbaum. 

Once the NLRB made its decision that Frosty ~rn 

should cease and desist discouraging union membership, an 

enforcement order was issued from Washington. Wien Frosty 

lt>rn still refused to bargain, Marcel Prevost of the NLRB 

referred the case to Carl Reuss, Clerk of the Sixth Circuit 

Court of Appeals in Cincinnati. The NLRB had gone as far 

as it could as a federal agency, and it turned the case 

over to the courts for enforcement. Frosty MJrn held that 

the reason the company was not negotiating was that it 

was involved in attempts to have the 1964 election set 

aside as improper becguse the ballots used were 

erroneous. 3 

Even after the case had been referred to the Sixth 

Circuit Court of Appeals, there was a long wait for an 

2n,id. 
3N~tional Labor Relations Decision 9652; 1963. Trial 

Gardner Branstetter, and Deal. 
Examiner Ohlbaum, Attorneys ' 



opening on the dockets. 

made numerous appeals to 

reviewed at the earliest 

Union Secretary-Treasurer Sloan 

the Courts to have the case 

date. He finally appealed to 

Tennessee Senator Albert Gore who was or no assistance. 
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Finally Sloan turned to Leon Schacter, International 

Vice-President of AMC, and Arnold Ordman, General Counsel 

of the NLRB. He urged them to use their influence at 

anytime to move the case up on the dockets of the courts. 

Both men promised their help. 

On June 21, 1967, the case of the NLRB y. Tennessee 

Packers, Frosty Morn Division was heard before the Sixth 

Circuit Court. Chief Justice Wrick presided with Circuit 

Justice Edwards and Senior Circuit Justice Cecil attending. 

Carl Reuss served as Clerk. 

The NLRB charged Frosty Jik:>rn with fifteen viola­

tions of 'Sections 8{a) {l) and 8{a)(S) of the National Labor 

Relations Act. section 8(a)(l) deals with the illegality 

of restraining and coercing the employees whether the 

action is successful or not while Section 8(a){S' deals 

with the refusal to bargain collectively. The Court heard 

the b the NLRB Prior to the issuing of 
case as reviewed Y 

the enforcement order. 

i Challenges were reviewed. 
Issues of the elect on 

The fact that the company denied that t he AMC had won 

twenty-one of the thirty-nine challenges was among the most 



pressing i~sues. The company charged that seven truck 

drivers had bean on runs outside the Clarksville area and 

thus were unable to vote, thus affecting the vote and 

challanges. 4 
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The AMC a~ed that Frosty Morn should accept the 

union as the recognized bargaining agent since the 

sustained ,.!hallenges from the 1964 election gave the union 

the necessary margin. The NLRB previously had decided 

that Frosty Morn should cease and desist in its failure v 

to meet and negotiate with the union. 

Frosty Morn claimed that much of the firm's delay 

came becau~e it had not had the proper notice for meetings 

and before votes were taken. The company claimed that 

John Reynolds, Regional Director of District 26 of the 

NLRB erred in announcing proper meetings. This error pro­

hibited the company's having time to make the necessary 

and proper arrangements in regard to fulfilling the law.5 

Frosty Morn asked that the election of 1964 be set aside 

on this basis. 

Frosty Morn gave the fact tha t the seven truck 

drivers had not been able to vote as reason to set aside 

4 1 f r the Sixth Circuit Court of 
Records and Br e Ns ~ v Tennessee Packers, Frosty 

Appeals, v. 17121-17130. -· 
~ Division, 17125, page~ 

5Ibid., page 7 • 
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the election. The company argued that the 
men had a 

community of interest and should have been allowed to vote.6 

The meat firm also argued that many workers did not have 

the necessary three week notice prior to the election.7 It 

was Frosty Morn I s belief that the rules adopted were 

inefficient , but the company denied that she had prejudiced 

the election or the rules. 

Despite the allegations of the company, the Court 

ruled against Frosty Morn on every issue. on the issue of 

the truck drivers, the Court decided that the drivers were 

temporarily out of the bargaining unit and thus were 

ineligible to vote. On the issue of the three week notice 

for rules for the election, the Court decided that any 

further stipulation on rules and regulations in elections 

would have inhibited the .full freedom of the elections. 

On the issue of hearings prior to the election, the Court 

agreed with the NLRB that hearings were not required unless 

there was new evidence relating to the case. Frosty Morn 

presented no evidence on the adoption of rules, the Court 

declared that the NLRB had not violated or abused any 

issue of discretion and that the rules established were 

sufficient. On the issue of Frosty MJrn's prejudicing the 

election, the Court had decided that the union had the right 

t an a-osphere free from company o hold the election in ~,u 

6rbid., page 15. 
7Ibid., page 14. 
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prejudice, but Frosty 1-brn was not charged. 

Frosty Morn still tried to 
move for a new election 

rather than abiding by the findings and decisions of the 

1964 election. The company contiqued to hold to the 

position that there had been improper meetings between the 

union and company prior to the 1964 election. George 

Gardner, attorney for Frosty Morn, argued that the findings 

of the Board were not based on substantial evidence. 

Frosty Morn defended itself against the charges of failure 

to meet and bargain by saying that when the union sought 

action to force negotiations, the company had already set 

a date to begin collective bargaining. 8 

Frosty Morn also charged that she had been unaware 

that she had been under investigation by the NLRB; there­

fore, the investigation was illegal. 9 The Court refused 

to accept this allegation. The Court's rulings against 

Frosty Morn meant that the company must meet and negotiate 

with the AMC as the certified bargaining agent. The Court 

recognized the challenges of the 1964 elec t ion in favor of 

th . 10 
e union. 

8'Ihe company claims tha t a date of August f4 P~d 
been set and confirmat ion was reque s t ed from t he uo 00

• 

9The NLRB had been investigating meetiofs1at the 
Plant but not necessarily those of company off ca s • 

10 th Court's rulings 00 
See the Appendix ~or ~

0 
were out of town. 

challenges and the truck drivers 



Frosty Morn appealed the case to the supreme Court 

but certeriori was denied.11 According to the supreme 

court deciaion, Frosty Morn had to meet and bargain with 

the union. At this point negotiations did begin but broke 

off after several months. 

Frosty Morn Division 
llTennessee Packers, 

389 us 9.58. 

V. NLRB--



Chapter VI 

LOCAL 405 LAUNCHES STRIKE 

During collective bargaining . with Frosty Morn the 

union demanded a check-off of dues; the company resisted. 

At 8 :15 on April 16, 1968, the workers at Frosty 

Morn walked out in what AMC Vice-President Roy Scheurich 

called a "·..inanimous strike. 111 Scheurich stated that two 

hundred twenty-seven workers did not show for work the 

day after the strike vote; Clay Barnes, Frosty Moro's 

general plant manager said that only one hundred fifty of 

the Frosty Morn employees failed to show for work. 2 

Negotiations appeared to break down over the issue 

of check-offs; however, the company felt that their offers 

of improved hospitalization, increased wages, guaranteed 

work week, call-in pay, meal privileges, and maternity 

leave more than compensated for their refusal to accept 

the issue of check-offs. '!be union, however, e1t!)ected the 

benefits for the workers as well as a settlement oc check-

3 db t de it clear that all offs. Barnes still objecte u ma 

it . as a means to avert other issues were open to negot a ions 

the strike. 

lclarksville ~ Chronicle, April 17, 1968. 1:2. 

2Ibid. 3Ibid. 
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There was an anti-company attitude 
e~mplified by 

one of the strikers when he said "Wh 
' en your pay is a dollar 

sixty or a dollar seventy an hour you 
couldn I t have much 

to lose by going on strike. 

as well off on relief. 114 
In fact, we'd be just about 

Once the strike was called, the uni'on organized 
three picket lines around the plant. In instructing the 

strikers serving on the picket line, the union officials 

urged the Jickets to remain peaceful at all times, 

especially to remain calm and to try to keep tempers down. 

Foul language and boisterous behavior were dis couraged. 

Pickets were urged not to block the entrance to the plant 

nor to inhibit deliveries to the plant. The traffic of 

employees still working in the plant was cot to be impeded. 

Any use of intoxicants was forbidden. If pickets were 

approached by someone wanting additional information or 

someone that they suspected of being a trouble maker, they 

were advised to send that person to the union headquarters.5 

Even while picket lines were being established and 

plans being made to avoid trouble, the union was asking 

Frosty Morn to negotiate. The union cited that Frosty Morn 

4"This Strike Must Be Won " Butcher Workman, 
September and October, 1968. No page cumber as articles 
were torn from magazine. 

511Instructions to Pickets," Frosty More-­
Miscellaneous, Union Records. 
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had a responsibility to meet and bargain as a resu1t of the 

NLRB decision and the subsequent decision of the Sixth 

Circuit Court of Appeals. Rh t i e or c continued as the union 

charged that the company was failing to meet the require­

ments of the Wagner Act. 

Frosty Morn felt that the union's actions left 

much to be desired. They had an injunction issued against 

the strikers. The court order issued by Chancery Court 
✓ 

Judge William Leech prohibited the union from establishing 

picket linos any closer than one thousand feet to the 

entrance to the plant. The injunction also set a limit of 

two picket lines. Any interference with traffic at the 

plant was strictly prohibited. 'Iha court issued a warning 

to all strikers to allow all lawful business at Frosty 

Morn t continue normally . 6 

The union again asserted thei r willingness to 

negotiate. They said that they were willin to live up to 

the spirit of the injunction and to continue to strike 

peacefully until Frosty Morn decided to begio coJ.lective 

After nine days of the strike, the unioo bargaining. 

Still had one hundred seventy-five reported that they 

workers on strike.7 

6 Leaf Chronicle, Apri1 25, 1968. 
Clarksville_.:::=;;..;;..;..--

7 Ibid. 

1:2. 
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Frosty Morn cho t . 

se O continue prosecuting violations 
of the 

people 

injunction and to forego collecti 
. -Ve bargaining. Most 

expected the strike to fail after a few weeks, and 

according to E. c. Moore, the 
company could function on 

limited production for a couple weeks. 

In prosecuting the violations of the injunction, 

persons were sent to Judge Leech's Chancery Court. After 

several cases involving injunction .violation, Judge Leech 

advised the plant to call the police to enfo r ce the 

injunction; he also stated that the Chancery Court was not 

the court in -which to try cases rel ating to violations of 

the injunction. Judge Leech and Clarksville attorney 

Waldo Rassas, who represented Frosty Morn , stated that all 

future violations of the injunction should be t ried in 

criminal court whe re the violat ors would face a maxinrum 

sentence o~ fifty dollars in fi nes and a possible te n days 

i . ·1 8 n Jai • 

The Clarksville Leaf Chronicle reported news of 

the strike for the f irst week, but af t er that , the newspaper 

f ~ that some two hundred workers seemed oblivious to the acu 

of the Clarksville community were out of work because of 

this strike. Occasionally the paper would select some 

ali to report to the pub­element of violence or sensation sm 
t seen to the logical lie, bu t rarely were these accoun sever 

8 Leaf Chronicle , May 26, 1968. 1:5. 
Clarksville _~:,:...:;~--



conclusionc For instance, the ar-nost of • 
•Q a violator of the 

injunction would be announced, but the paper would often 

not carry.the news of his conviction or release. 
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Thu paper also failed to report the launching of 

the consumer boycott against Frosty Morn. When they did 

report a demonstration against Frosty Morn, there was 

seldom a follow up story. I cite particularly the case of 

a demonstration to be held on September 21, 1968 in which 

the union wanted to emphasize the wage raises expected for 

its strike~s, labor's part in the conmunity, and the growth 

of the community with labor's aid. 9 The success of the 

march or its influence on downtown merchants was unkDown to 

readers of the Leaf Chronicle.1O 

T'ne Leaf Chronicle did carry paid advertisements 

from Frosty Morn. On May 5, 1968, Frosty lorn had a full 

page ad in the paper in which they advertised various jobs 

'l bl They announced that the which were presently ava1 a e. 

t h d d dollors a week while workers could earn one to wo un re 

being trained.11 Union advertisements were carried in the 

Nashville papers. 

9c.1arks~ille Leaf Chronicle, September 15, 1968. 1:4. 
- account of the demonstra-

10union records show no·zation or the union's 
tion either by way of the or~an~o say that the union played 
participation. It may be sia e their strike against Frosty 
only a minor role to advert se 
Morn, 

11 Leaf Chronicle, May 5, 1968 • 
Clarksville;;._---~:..=.:~-

Page 5, 
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There were numerous stories of violence surrounding 

the strike• The fifteen month conflict kept many people 

away from jobs. 'l'hose who walked the picket lines were 

often hostile to people who drove by to harrass them but 

even more hostile to those who continued to work. 

The ~ Chronicle was e. fair source for news of 

the beatings, fights, and other forms of violence. The 

charges against strikers and their opponents were generally 

those relating to assault and battery or disorderly con­

duct. After the preliminary charges against the union for 

breaking the injunction, there seemed to be no further 

charges against them by the company. James }bsley, a 

striking employee of Frosty Moro, was arraigned before the 

grand jury on charges of assault and battery of Clay 

Barnes. These charges were brought against him on May 22, 

1968. On June 4, he again was arres ted. This t ime the 

charge was disorderly conduct. Mosley f ailed to show for 

his trial; his lawyer apologized by saying that the client 

12 had confused the dates. 

another striker, had several James Heriweather, 

peace warrants issued against him • He was also charged 

. l e May 29 1968. 1:1. 12
c1arksville ~ Ch~oicin' t he Leaf Chronicle, 

Mosley's name was spelled Mose 1~ing as Mosley• The paper 
but union records show the ~~er action against Mosley. 
showed no account of any fur 
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with assaults of Henry Hardy and James Wagoner.13 

Witnesses Billy Stanfield, Mike Welsh. and , James Mosley 
heard Meriweather threaten Hardy on May 7, 1968 at the 

14 
A & P laundromat. Meriweather is alleged to have 

threatened Wagoner on May 9 at the Municipal Stadium at 

Austin Peay State University. Meriweather was placed under 

two peace bonds of one thousand dollars each prior to his 

trial by Clarksville General Sessions Judge Billy Ricker-

son. 

Other instances of trouble include peace bonds 

being issued against Charles Stinton and Pete Lehman. There 

are no records of the outcome. Jesse Lee Proctor was 

brought to trial for assault with intent to kill Henry 

Carney. 

There were few cases of women beicg involved in 

instances of violence; however, Chief of Police Charles 

Vaden testified that he was an eye witness to the event on 

May 22, 1968 when Anne Young threw a brick through the 

center of a car windshield. Young was arrested with James 

Mosley and the two were foWJd guilty and fined fifty dollars 

15 
by Judge Collier GoodJ.ett, Jr. 

13c1arksville Leaf Chronicle., -
14ciarks ville Leaf Chronicle, -
l5Clarksville Leaf Chronicle, -

May JO, 1968. 1:3. 

June 7, 1968. 1:5. 

June 4, 1968. 1:2. 
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Edwin Hadley, owner or Hadley• s Hilldale Market, 

was involved in a melee with strikers Willie Bohlen and Jack 

Powell. The two strikers were present 'Whee a Frosty More 

truck delivered goods to the Hadley Market. Investigators 

Russell Davidson and Joe Poole noted that Hadley threw a 

Royal Crown cola case at the two strikers.16 Hadley claims 

that he had remained neutral in relation to the strike until 

his life had been threatened due to his store carrying 

Frosty Morn meat. This was even before the boycott had 

been instituted. Hadley said that he was trying to avert 

trouble, but Judge Collier Goodlet t , J r ., ruled against 

him since there appeared to have been no overt act taken 

against him by the two strikers.17 The instances of 

violence appeared to last only in t he early months of the 

strike. 

Early in the strike, the union accused the Frosty 

furn salesman of telling the store owner that the st rike 

was over. 'lhe union made this accusation in July after the 
18 

f over two months . A spot strike had been in progress or 

reported in the ~ Chronicle revealed that shop owners 

had not heard this rumor. 19 

16Ibid. l 7Ibid. 

18 Le af' Chronicle, June 14, 1968. 1:4. 
Clarksville_~:.=..;:.--- . 

.... d this survey is not 
19A report of wh? cond~~deunion records have no 

listed in the Leaf Chronicle' 
mention of it.-
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Reports on activities relating to strike activities 

were rare until the settlement 
was announced in July, 1969. 

At the tiln~ the settlement was being made, Frosty Morn 

issued a statement that dues check-offs would begin on 

April 16; whereas, the union withheld all statements until 

the July 15 meeting with the CODIJ?any officials. 

By 1969, the union was relating a thirty percent 

effectiveness in the Clarksville strike with only two 

hundred thirty-two workers including management working 
20 everyday at the plant. Ur:Uon reports claimed that the 

plant was slaughtering only one thousand hogs daily and 

maintaining deliveries with ten trucks to west Tennessee, 

northern Alabama, and northern Georgia. 21 

The union hoped to keep morale of the strikers up 

by publicizing the poor working conditions at the plant 

and the success of the two other strikes against Neuhoff 

in the South. A film of these strikes was produced by the 

union and advertised to keep public interests in the strike 

alive and thus show the strikers that people cared about 

the success of their strike. 

March 29, 1969, 20W kly Report from Edward Betrame, 
ea U • 0 Records. Frosty Morn--Miscellaneous, nio 

21Ibid. 
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The union also ught 
so endorsement from other 

unions and the national headquarters or the AFL-cro. The 

Mari time Trade Union did ext d 
en sympathy and support early 

n . t 22 in the con ic • 

Money for the strike was supplied by the Inter­

national headquarters in Chicago. In April over $6,000 

was supplied from donations and gifts made to the Inter­

national for the Frosty _Morn strikers in the south.23 

Some money was supplied to strikers to aid those 

'Whose creditors were threatening. A sample case can be 

seen with Bobby Davenport tr.ho owed $56,99 to Westinghouse, 

$57.00 to Sears, $62.50 to the Northern Bank, and $34.0l to 

Seaboard Finance as of December 6, 1968, 24 The AMC tried 

to aid in many cases such as this, but only a few could be 

so lucky as money was tight and needed for the general 

activities of the strike as well as for relief for the 

strikers. 

Th8 union tried to maintain morale so that workers 

could see that they had support from all fronts. The union 

believed that time and th~ courage of the strikers would 

eventually prove successful. 

22Letter f Peter McOavin to Tom Lloyd, July 26, 
rom U. c Union Records. 1968, Literat11re against the nio' 

23 t Patrick Gorman, April 1, 
Letter from Tom Hart o Union Records; Letter from 

1969, Frosty Morn--MiscellaneousA il 11 1969, op. cit. 
Patrick Gorman to Ronald Sloan, pr ' 

t Morn--Miscellaneous, 
24Bobby Davenport, Fros Y 

Union Records. 



Chapter VII 

THE CONSUMER BOYCOTT: UNION'S VITAL WEAPON 

Although the picket lines played a vital role in 

advertising the strike against F~oaty Morn, in July, 1968, 

the union decided that a consumsr boycott would be a vital 

weapon if they were to win their strike against Neuhoff. 

The AMC felt that it was necessary to defeat Neuhoff in 

all areas of the South because they felt that "he could 

destroy personal dignity of the employee and perpetuate 

oppressive substandard wage and working conditions. 111 

Local 405 of the AMC with the aid of the International ic 

Chicago, initiated the consumer boycott as a means of 

bringing the conditions of the workers to the public eye; 

the boycot·4 was felt to be e saential to the morale of the 

striker and the success of the strike . 

A boycott committee of the strike was established 

ial as sistant to the union and chaired by Earl Grant, spec 

Vice-President Harry Poole. Gran t was aided by Roy 

had been OD hand to aid the Scheurich, Vice-President who 

strike since its inception. 

1 . AFL-CIO News, July 24, 1968, 
Copy of Michigan Union Records. 

Frosty Horn--Miscellaneous, 

• 
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The AJ.~C planned to institute the boycott on a five 

state basis in order to have th 
e greatest consumer pressure 

where Neuhoff had the largest amount f 
o meat packing 

plants. It is for this reason that the boycott was con-

centrated in Tennessee, Florida, Alabama, Virginia, and 

North Carolina. Despite the fac+, that Neuhoff 1 s business 

had spread to Northern cities, the union concentrated its 

efforts in the South because of the three strikes against 

Neuhoff in Southern cities like Clarksville, Quincey, and 

Montgomery. 

In December, 1968, the union advertised the strikes 

and the boycott by taking strikers from Montgomery aod 

Clarksville plants to Roanoke, Virginia. Io Virginia, the 

strikers marched in front of Lorenz euhoff's home. 

Workers from Quincey were not present because of the great 

distance from Florida to Virginia and no t because they 

disagreed with the technique. 

By March, 1969, some thought the boycott should 

11 as t he con sumers, but the be spread to retailers as we 

theJ.. r goals would best be accomplished union decided that 

by maintaining the consumer boycott. 

t tighten up the cam­Plans were begun, however, 0 

A film, featuring people who were Paign against Neuhoff. 

ff was made and cir­· nst Neuho , actually out on strike agai 

uld give aid to the strikers. 
cuJ.ated ~nong groups who co 
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This film, Our Struggle was a do 
- ' cumentary of the strike as 

well as good propaganda for the union. 

Other methods employed to t·ght 1 en up the anti-
Neuhoff cantpaign included interaction of people discussing 
the roles of the strikers. Some individuals chose to 

advertise the strike by having a secondary boycott against 

stores selling Frosty Morn meats.2 

The union also began to buy thirty second non­

commercial spots on radio stations by which they could 

advertise ~he strike and the boycott. Tho AMC claims 

difficulty in getting radio stations in Quincey t o adver­

tise the boycott. 3 There was no trouble in obtaining 

advertisements in Clarksville where they paid $38 for 

eighteen announcements; they used three for a three week 
L, period. ,. 

Tht-1 AMC always employed the method of passing out 

leanets in front of stores which sold Neuhoff products. 

The persons who had this duty were informed that they 

should not interfere with the business of the store . 

AMC emphasized that they should make the boycot t known 

'lb.a 

2 h Kroger store in Clarksville 
Rumor had it th 4 t t e i ts own label; 

on Madison sold Frosty Morn meats under 
there is no proof. 

n ts Spark Union's 
3"Protest Marches and ~:n e February, 1969. No 

Neuhoff Campaign," Butcher Wor ' 
Page number. 

to Earl Grant, April 3, 
411 Letter from Ronald Sloan Union Records . 

1969," Frosty Morn--Miscellaneous, 
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without interfering with the business of the 

retailers. 
In the leaflets which advertised the boycott, the federal 

inspection numbers of all Neuhoff products were made known. 

These numbP-rs were 41.L~, 840, 731, 576, 250, 34, 922, 1778. 

The handbill used seemed to be successful but was revised 

for use in Memphis, New Orleans, and Birmingham in order to 

get better support of the boycott in these cities.5 

Instructions were given to people who passed out 

leaflets. These instructions were similar t o those given 

to pickets at the plants. Drinking was prohibited as was 

obscene language and boisterous actions. People passing 

out handbills were warned not to obstruct traffic around 

the stores nor to interfere with deliveries to the stores. 

The front entrance to the store was to be the site of all 

leaflet activities; if this site was denied, the strikers 

and other aids were to use the public sidewalk . 

People wore to remember that they should advertise 

that the boycott was against Neuhoff meats and that there 

was not a strike against the store. Persons passing out 

leaflets w~re not to request that consumers discontinue 

patronizat~on of a store because it sold Frosty Moro meats. 

5 1 aflet used at Clarksville 
See Appendix for t~e. ~ of the handbill for the 

stores. The reason for revis~~ author but apparently 
three cities is not clear to e rt from' the Southern 
they were seeking stronger suppo 
Christian Leadership Conference. 



It was the responsibility of persons passing out 

handbills to keep the area clean and 
to avoid trouble. 

Arguments with people concerning th t ik .e s r e or boycott were 

discouraged. If an official or private party had a com-

plaint, thoy were to be referred to a union address in 

Nashville or 878 York Avenue in ~tlanta. 6 

The AMC turned to other unions and labor groups to 

give support of the strike and boycott. Clothing workers 

and paper workers of Mobile, Alabama gave t heir support of 

the strike and boycott. There was some support from the 

Southern Christian Leadership Conference. 

The AMC was sure that the boycot t hurt the Neuhoff 

plants. The April-May, 1969 issue of the Butcher Workman 

stated that Frosty Morn was fifty thousand manpower hours 

below normal production level s even though the plants still 

worked a sixty hour week in an attempt to keep up produc­

tion.7 

Earl Grant reported that Frosty }t)rn was trying to 

buy meats from competito rs in order to fill the orders that 

were backlogged. Competito rs were reluctant because they 

hoped to win the customers los t by Frosty Horn as a resu1 t 

Although the Union was sure their tactics of the strike. 

. k t Frosty•Moro--Miscellaneous, 6rnstruction to Pie es, 
Union Records. 

?"Neuhoff is Really Hurting," Butcher Workman, 
April-May, 1969. No page number. 



were working, they accused Frosty Morn of illegal and 

unethical methods of combatting the boycott.8 Despite 
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the animosity during the strike, tbe union periodically 

called for a peaceful settlement with labor and management 

warking together. 

As the strike drew to a close the union told the 

strikers that it had been the boycott that had brought the 

company to the bargaining table. The boycott may have had 

an adverse effect on Frosty Morn, but the length of the 

strike appears to have been the reason for both sides to 

be willinB to come to the bargaining table. Neither aide 

would have been able to finance a longer venture. 

969 II 'R ar March 26, 1 ' 
8"Press Release of Les. 0 n ~ec~rds. 'llle illegal 

Frosty Morn--Miscellaneous,i~n~~t specifically stated. 
method used by the company 



Chapter VIII 

PREVIOUS CONTRACT PROPOSALS AND THE SETTIEMENT 

When the strike ended on July 15, 1969,1 both the 

union and the compa~y agreed that a satisfactory settlement 
2 

had been r~ached. The company broke negotiations with 

the union fifteen months earlier over the issue of check­

offs, 3 but now the issue was resolved and as Gorman of the 

AMC said, "The road is a long difficult one. The one rule 

that is so vitally necessary in the world today was 

sensibly used by both side s--the rule of reason. 114 

Th~ issue of check-offs did appear to be the 

singular issue on which negotiations broke down , but the 

union had included this issue in every contract they had 

submitted to Frosty Morn since negotiations had begun in 

1966. 

There is little difference among the three con­

tracts the union had submitted since 1966 ba aining had 

begun. The 1966 and 1967 contracts were erely sketches 

of what the union hoped to achieve while the 1968 contract 

was thorough for the company had begun to bargain. 

lThe Clarksville ~ Chronicle announced the date 
as July 16. • 

2Ibid. 3Ibid. 
tt Ended," Butcher 

4"Neuhoff Strike settled--Boyco 
!i9rkman, August,September, 1969• 
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In February 1965 th . 
, , e union contract consisted of 

a list of forty demand s which the union felt were designed 

to better the working conditions of employees. The con­

tract was merely a proposal 'Which would ask for recognition 

of the union and the establishment of an employment policy. 

The union suggested a regular work week starting Monday 

and ending Sunday with compensation for Sunday work. Under 

the union proposal, an employee would be off twelve hours 

between shifts and would be assured that hourly work would 

be equally distributed. 

There were provisions under the 1965 contract for 

penalty pay such as double pay for all holidays5 and 

Sundays. '.!here was to be time and a half pay for all 

Saturdays worked and anytime over an eight hour day or a 

forty hour week. There would also be time and a half pay 

for anytime worked after five hours of work prior to a 

meal break. Night workers would also receive a 12¢ 

premium as compensation pay. 

Truck dri vars would be included in the bargaining 

unit. The proposal made provisions for foo d allowances 

for the dr:i.vers when they were 00 out-of- t own runs . 
6 

~ 1965 were ew Year's Day, 
.-'flolidays accepted i~ ristmas, Employee's 

July 4, Labor Day, 'lbanksgivingy dh,s Eve and Christmas Eve. 
birthday and half days on New ear 

' $l 25 for breakfast, 
h..__ for dri vars was • 
"Food allowance for dinner. 

$l • .5o for lunch, and $2.00 
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Drivers would also be furnished lodging for nights spent 

away from Cl arksville. They would not be reprimanded for 

any overnight stops made for the necessary safety to their 

person, equipment, or prope rty. Driver s would also no~ 

have to pu.i.l overloads and would be able t o re sume pay 

after an eight hour lay-over. The company was to provide 

drivers with helpers on run s whi ch had more than f ifty 

stops or which had a load weight of tee thousand pounds. 

Runs also would have to be post ed f or seniority bi ds 

every three mont hs. 7 

The company would have to provide proper compliance 

of the cost of l iving , singl e rate, guaranteed pay f or 

forty hour week, an eight hour day, seniori t y, l eaves of 

absence, grievan ce , union visi t a ti on , meal allowance , 

fu rnished clot hing , and time allowance for change of 

clothes. 

Fros t y Mor n would also have to provide a pension 

fund, heal th insurance (hospi talizat i on, medical , surgical, 

f ncy funeral and accident) , sick l eave, leave or pregoa , 

l eave, and a l eave for jury or civic duty . 

Provision made fo r reinstateme nt There would be 

for imprope :i." or ill egal ,us charge · 

7 h d been accep t ed, runs now open 
I f the contract a for bids . 

would have had to be placed up 
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Paid 7acations would be awarded on the basis or one 

week for one year's service; two weeks for .,. two years' 
service; three weeks for ten years• service; four weeks for 
twenty years' service. Pay r 

or vacations would have been 

computed on the basis of 2,25% of the previous annual 

earnings. 

The union requested the right to challenge standards, 

piecework, incentive. No subcontracting of union work was 

to be allowed, The contract also prortded that super-

visors not be allowed to harass employees, The union also 

reserved the right to add to the contract during the 

bargaining period. All provisions would be left open to 

negotiations for both sides. 

The company would provide power tools when· they 

were necessary to the work and would furnish any tools 

necessary to add to maintenance and production. Workers 

would not be forced to use unsafe equipment , 

The union urged that workers continue t o share in 

profits fr.om the vending machines and that any beneti ts 

already enjoyed from the company be continued. 
8 

'lbe wage scale would be regular union wage• 

The contract prepared in December, 1967 was again 

al but i t included all the points covered merely apropos , 

8S~e the Appendix for the union wage scale. 
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in the 1965 contract with some mod·fi . 
i cations. The new con-

tract proposal provided for non-discrimination in all 

hiring practices. 

Regarding penalty pay, the new proposal called for 

double time instead of time and a half for holidays and 

sundays. Time and a half would be given for any time over 

eight hours a day and forty hours a week. N o employee 

could be made to work over fifty hours a week unless she 

volunteered. 

Vauations and holidays were altered slightly. 

Under the new contract an employee of fifteen years 

received four weeks' vacation and an employee of twenty 

years received five weeks' vacation. Under the new pro­

posal there would be eight holidays9 with one added lo 

1970.10 

The union would require that seniority rights be 

clearly defined between that of the plant and that of the 

department. It must be clear how the rights could be lost. 

The concept of promotion and demotion and job choice within 

h f . d Besides regular leaves of t e plant was to be de 1ne • 

absence, the union would add leaves for personal reasons 

and elective public office. 'Ihe company would be required 

CL th New Year's Day, Wash-
. 'Holidays in 1967 re~er D:y Thanksgiving, Veteran's 
ington 1 s birthday, July 4, a~ Ne~ Year's Eve and 
Day, Christmas, and half days or 
Christmas Eve. 

el.'ther Good Friday or Employee's 
lOThe addition being 

birthday. 
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to give employees a half d 

ay off on payday with pay for a 
full day• Not only could jobs wi thi . . 

n the bargaining unit 
not be sub~ontracted without pe--~ . 

L·uu.ssion, but outside 
agencies could not be used except i 

n emergency. 
'llle union asked for the right t . o use their 

Industrial Engineering Department for patterns for numbers 

to jobs that were not in existence at the time the contract 

was drawn. The patterns of Swift and Armour were to be 

used in de~iding the rate for each job. A new pay scale 

was introduced. 11 

The contract under negotiations in 1968 at the time 

of the strike is virtually the same contract which the 

union and company agreed upon when the strike was settled 

in July, 1969. 

Under the contrac t , the union would require recog­

nition as sole collective bargaining agent for production , 

maintenance, and drivers of the Clarksville Frosty More; 

however, the contract would exclude office clerical , part­

time clerical, salesmen, watchmen, guards, and supervision 

as defined by the Wagner Act . There seemed to have been 

as to whether the parttime clerical and some controversy 

b ai i Unit The union said salesmen were to be in the arg c ng • · 

"no" while the company said "yes • "
12 

llsee Appendix for 1967 union wage scale. 
11 Tennessee Packers Agree-1211section I-Recogni tion, 

men t , Union Records. 
• 
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Frosty Morn had to defin it 
e s company policy for 

employment which would make a person eligible for employment 

desp.i te race' sex, color, creed, national origin, religion, 

or membership in a union. 13 Under 
the employment policy 

contribution to charities would be voluntary. 

'f"ne work week was defined as starting Monday and 

ending Sunday with Sunday not included as a regular work 

day; the work week must be a forty hour week. The employer 

would have to pay time and a half for anytime the employee 

worked without at least twelve hours between shifts. 

Shifts also had to provide for the equal distribution of 

labor with provisions for the steward to check every thirty 

days to insure the practice. 

Provis ions for penalty pay would provide for double 

time for all holidays and SUndays worked; time and a half 

would be paid for all work done on Saturday. There would 

also be time and a half for all time worked over a forty 

hour week or an eight hour day; they were to be paid at the 

t f both Satu day and greater rate but not at the ra e or • 

SUnday were defined as the twenty-four hour period follow-

ing 12:01 A. M. 

V Of the agreement defined provisions for Section 

f Employees were guaranteed a meals, lodging, and relie • 
k Besides the fifteen minute break after two hours wor • 

13"section II-Employment Policy," op. cit. 
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fifteen minuta break, meals must occu~ 

~- after five consecu-
tive hours at work or the company must 

f'urnish a twenty 
minute break with pay. Under rel1.' f t 

e, ruck drivers were 
allowed $1.25 for their breakfast 

'While on the road, $1. 50 
for lunch, and $2.00 for dinner. 

The company would pay 

for their lodging when the driver was forced to stay over­

night. The driver was not to be subjected to reprimand 

for any stops made out of necessity for the safety of him­

self, his oquipment, or his products. 

The contract provided for holidays starting at 

12:01 of the day of the holiday. If a holiday fell on a 

Sunday, employees were to be given the following Monday orr.'11+ 

All regular f'ull time employees were to be paid for the 

holidays. 

Under the contract , clothing allowances were to be 

provided for all regular workers. Persons not working a 

regular work week received fifty cents a week in lieu of 

clothing allowance. Newly employed persons received eight 

cents a day for clothing for each day of their first work 

week if th'3y were hired after Monday; holidays did not 

count. Tho company must continue the practice to launder, 

press, and repair all work clothes . Under this section of 

11,__ t t were ew Year's Day, 
"11!olidays in this c~n r;~ July 4, Labor Day, 

Washington's Birthday, Memori~ isi~as Day, and the 
Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving, r 
Employee's birthday. 
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the contract, the company also had to :f'urn1.·sh necessary 

tools for the workers to perform their jobs and had to pay 

emnloyees for time spent · · ••-r repairing tools; no employee was 

to be paid for less than fifteen minutes spent in this 

capacity. 

'l'h3 wage portion of the contract was divided into 

two parts with the first being provisions for paying 

employees at the highest rate once they were finally assigned 

to a job. The wage portion of the contract provided for a 

twelve cent minimum for night work with night work being 

defined as that time between 6:00 P. M. and 6:00 A. M. with 

no worker being forced to work this time if she had already 

worked a full day. 

The second part of the wage contract provided tor 

a cost of living study based on the Consumer Price Index 

Department of Labor. This study should occur every six 
15 

months with proper adjustments made in salary. If the 

survey shonld be delayed, salaries must be adjusted th8 

first pay period after the issuance of the surv Y• 

Under the agreements, provisions for a forty hour 

week were guaranteed applicable for holidays. Employees 

could not be made to work over fifty hours a week. 
Time 

ould be 1¢ increase for 
15The proper adJustme~t ~ living and 1¢ decrease 

every -4% increase in t?e ~~= c~st of living. 
for every .4% decrease in 



76 

missed by an employee Could be deducted r 
ram her pay if the 

absence was not for an acceptable excuse allowed in the 

contract. 

Vacations were based on accwnuJ.ative service from 

December 31 to December 30 with the vacati·on b eing available 

on the anntversary date if the employee had not been absent 

for one hundred twenty days consecut i vely . Vacation time 

was one week for one year's service; two weeks for two 

years I service, three weeks for ten year s I service, four 

weeks for fifteen years ' se r vi ce , and five weeks for twen ty 

years I service. If the milita ry interrupted service , the 

employee r e ceived one vacation f or each compl ete year in 

service except the year l eft and the year returned. 

Vacations were paid at t he rate of 2.25% of the prior year ' s 

earnings . Pay was eligible at the be innin or end of 

the vacation at the di s cretion of the employee . If an 

employee was dismi s se d, the va cation pay was given . 

Seniority was to be defined on the basis of plant 

and departme ntal. Plant seniority would be in the day the 

1 h . d Seniority must be posted in three emp oyee was i r e • 

places wi th t h e plan t maki ng an updated list every thi r ty 

•••a s moved to a new department , her days. If the employee n 

l
••oul d be added to any time accumul ated existing seniori t y ~ 

· t agreement made provisions 
prior to the move . The seniori Y 

, jobs and p~omotions . There 
for recalli ng, di splacing , new ' 

. 1.· ng of seniori ty after a 
f , the r egain were also pr ovisi ons 0 1 

break in se rvice . 
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Leavs~ of absence were 

available without pay on the 
basis of service. An employee of five years service was 
eligible for two weeks leave of b 

a sence, ten years service 
rendered one month, ten to fifteen years 

service rendered 

two months and three months was allowed for over fifteen 

Years of service. Jobs ~-=re t b f"l 
nv o e i led temporarily. 

Leaves were available for union business, illness, family 

problems, and jury duty. An employee could have no more 

than four months off work without forfeiting her job and 

benefits. A fifteen day notice had t o be given prior to 

taking an 0fficial leave. 

The company and union provided a grievance procedure 

by which a grievance when issued went from the steward to 

the foreman and finally to an arbitrator . If co decision 

was reached, a federal mediator could be called in with 

both the union and the company sharing the expense . 

Frosty Morn had to furnish, at .no e.]Cpense to the 

employee, hospitalization, medical, su gical , diagnostic , 

and major medical insurance. Life insurance was ade 

available. The insurance provided for a ten thousand dollar 

life insurance policy. In the case of hospitalization , the 

insurance provided for a semi-private room wi th full pay-

anesthesiology, radiology, and pathology. 
ment for surgical, 

bo th i n and out patients was to be 
Full diagnostic pay for 

awarded. 
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The company provided $26 
a month to the AMC's 

pension pl&n as the company pension had not 
been approved 

by the U.S. Treasury. 

The miscellaneous segment of the contract allowed 
the union visitation rights at yt· an ime. Employees still 
were allowed to receive benefi ts from the vending machines. 
The company had to furnish power trucks where needed as 

well as to 'furnish helpers f t or ruck dri vars "410 were on 

runs of over fifty stops or which carried ten thousand 

pounds. Drivers could not be forced to pull overloads. 

The miscellaneous segment also allowed that truck 

routes had to be placed up for bid . 

Al9o in the miscellaneous segment , no employee 

could be forced to use unsafe equip ant . The company had 

to furnish clothing and a minimum of twelve minutes to 

change. Women were allowed time off without pay for child­

bearing. A maxiDlUln of three days was allowed off work for 

jury duty. The union forbade that work of the bargaining 

unit be su!:>contracted. In the provision listed ,mder the 

miscellaneous portion of the contract, all employees dis­

missed since 1962 because of unfair labor pract ice s bad to 

be fully reinstated with allowances for backpay . 

In 1968, the contract provided for check-offs by 

which the company deducted initiation fees as well as union 

dues from t he pay check of all employees who were union 

members. This process wculd continue from year to year 
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until the employee shouJ.d revoke• divi 
in dual union membership 

or the union failed to gain the right to remain the 

bargaining agent for the workers. I 
n any event, written 

notice of at least ten days prior to stopping check-offs 

would have to be given for the change to be effected. 

The contract gave its company the right to direct 

work force as well as to plan, direct, control, hire, sus­

pend, discharge employees. The company also had the right 

to study and improve production methods and facilities . 

The union defined its intent as that of forming 

rules, pron1oting efficiency, channeling problems, recog­

nizing mutual interest, and reaffirming agreements to solve 

the problems of pay, hour week, and the emplorae condi­

tions •16 

Sickneas and accidents clauses provided for co more 

than eight weeks leave for maternity benefits. No employee 

was eligible for sick leave unless the employer was 

notified i!1'Imediately. One year of servi ce qualified an 

employee for seven sick days. The quali ficat i ons did cot 

continue if the employee was discharged f or Just cause, 

quit, or was lsid off for one hundred eighty days. 

given if the workers had worked Separation pay was 
discharged involun­le ss than one year service and were 

basis of one week's pay for each tarily. PHY was on the 

Records. 

Packers Agreement, Union 16"XIX Intent," Tennessee 
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year's service from one to ten years, one and three quarter 

for years . over ten and under twenty; over twenty years' 

service merited two weeks' pay. If less than four weeks 

was due the employee, the sum was to be paid in total. If 

more than f our weeks, the payments could be in weekly 

installments. If the employee died, the payments could be 

given to the widow and dependents. 

When the strike was settled, thi s contract was 

accepted. The signing of the contract marked the beginning 

of union and company relat ions at t he Frosty 1-k>rn plant in 

Clarksvill~, Tennessee. 



Chapter IX 

CONCLUSION 

Considering the various aspects or the Frosty Moro 

strike, it is difficult to draw many 1 cone usions because 

of the lack of information from both sides. Information 

from both sides makes it easier to gain a more balanced 

picture. F·rom the information available, however, one can 

see that the union worked diligently to become the bargain­

ing agent for the Frosty Morn plant. 

The fact that the union had tried for close to a 

decade to organize the workers in Clarksville indicated 

that it was serious in its ef·forts. The fact that the NLRB 

recognized the union and that the Court ruled against the 

company in her attempts at stalling unioni zation, leads 

one to believe that Frosty Morn had consistently fought 

legitimate unionization attempts. 

The union worked hard in behalf of the strikers 

and thus t:1e workers in the plant were encouraged to trust 

the union. Even though the union's cases on behalf of the 

k always awa.r .ded to the workers, the wor era were not 

th t the union was willing Prospective union members saw · a 
far to protect the rights of to offer support and to go as 

the ·workers as an individual wanted to go. 
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Ot cou~se, thel'e were th 
ose people who thought the 

company was offering as many b;netits 
as it could without 

going out or business. In my conversation wi · th E. c. ?tk>ore, 
plant manager 'When the AMC first began its 

organization 
attempts in the plant, Mr. Moore seemed to be sincere in 

his belief that the company was doing the best that it 

could and that the union's cases to the NLRB and all 

unionization only provoked the employees to take advantage 

of the company. 

The case before the Circuit Court, however, made 

it appear that Frosty Morn was always hostile to unioniza­

tion. The NLRB maintained in its brief and in letters to 

the company and union that Frosty Morn's record of 

consistent resistance to the union was cause enough to 

award the election to the union. 

The most obvious point toward the conclusion that 

Frosty Morn would resist the union lay in the fact that the 

company WS.R willing to accept all benefits for its workers, 

as suggested in the union's various contract proposals, 

except dues check-offs. '!be refusal to accept dues check­

offs appears to be a refusal to accept or recognize a 

it Union officials drew union rather than any other po D • 

much the srune conclusion. 

that the conswner boycott was 
The union's claim 

Frosty Morn to the bargaining 
the weapon which brought 

The boycott certainly hurt the 
table is an exaggeration. 
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company, but the length or the strike was the 
factor which 

brought both sides to the bargaining table. 
Neither side 

could have continued on a strike for much longer. Frosty 

Morn was a:i.ready operating at limited production, coating 

them money and customers. The union ~uld not have had the 

money to continue the strike for much longer. Money for 

relief for the strikers was running out. strike morale was 

getting low as most strikers were financially distraught 

from being out of work for close to two years. 

It remains that the union was received at the plant 

and is still there. At the last contract negotiations in 

1973 the union won its new contract without major repercus­

sions and with no threat of a strike. Frosty Moro, 

however, is still reluctant to discuss matters relating to 

the union J~or they fear an upset in the balance between 

company ancl union which they have finally achieved. 

There seems to be a doubt in m.y mind that the 

fifteen month strike was necessary although I would accept 

that a strike was necessary to begin negotiations. Also 

if Frosty Morn was only resistant to the dues check-offs 

as the on1, issue in the contract, then the lengthy strike 

t to hold agaiost the is even more of an adverse fao or 

company• The background of union resistance from the com­

the strike and i ta outcome is 
pany must be kept in miod if 

to have the proper meaning• 
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Fnosrr IY/onN IJIIEA;; 
I NCORPORATEO 

1t!HS47•231 I 

P. 0. BOX 1048 

CLARKSVILLE, TENNESSEE 37040 

December 15, 1972 

Donna Ga i 1 Wa 11 er 
Box 8333 
Austin Peay State University 
Clarksville, Tennessee 37040 

Dear Miss Waller: 

Your letter of December 4, 1972 has been brought to my attention. 

Our position on your request is negative for the following 
reasons: 

CB;mk 

1. A.P.S.U. is a local institution made up of many local 
people. 

2. Frosty Morn Meats is a meat packing business in Clarksville 
staffed with local people. 

3. Frosty Morn Meats has recognized the Union as the bargaining 
agent for the hourly paid employees at this plant. 

4. The relationship between the Company and the Union has been 
good for tne past three years. 

5. In view of the fact that many local people in one way or 
another are involved with Austin Peay State University and 
Frosty Morn Meats we deem it not in the best interest of this 
Company to comw.ent one way or another on the 1968-69 strike 
at this plant. 

Sincerel y yours, 

FROSTY MORN MEA TS 

~C ' / / ~{/ • • · , - . . • 
.... / , (. 

/ . 
Clay Barnes 
General Manager 
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lfl.eof Cutlers 01,d 

Bulcher lllorkmen 
OP- NO"TH AMCRIC-" 

ARCA CODE 311 / 248 · 11700 

2800 N. SHERIDAN ROAD CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60657 

December 19, 19 72 

Ms. Donna Gail Waller 
Austin Peay State University 
Box 8333 
Clarksville, Tennessee 37040 

Dear Ms. Waller: 

In reg~rd to your request for information pertaining 
to the . Frosty Morn Meats strike in 1968. we do have 
extens~ve re~ords, picture~, newspaper clippings, leaf­
lets, .1.6mrn film documentation and other material 
pertaining to that strike here at this office. We 
would be very glad to show you all of this material 
here, but because of their value, we are somewhat 
reluctant to send them through the mail . 

I would suggest however, that you get in touch with 
Ronald Sloan, Secretary-Treasurer of Local 405, 
Nashville, Tennessee. I'm sure he has many of the 
same r•~cords and maybe even more since it was that 
local union that was directly involved with the strike. 

It might be helpful if you tried in person at Local 405 
in Nashville for two reasons: 1) I ' m sure tl1at they ar~ 
also reluctant to send this information through the m~il, 
and 2) Sec~etary-Treasurer Sloan at the_present time is 
very sick and will be enter±ng the hospital for a cancer 
operation in the near future. Sor t~e less bo thersome 
you present yourself, the better it is . 

Good L11ck in your thesis . Sincerely yours , 

RJD/im 

,,,_ , ' ' J' t\..,; ( (, ~(. ~ ,: 
I . 

Robert Delaney '..-41'/ . 

t . Fi'eld Representative 
Educa ion 



Ol'f"ICE 0, TH! CLER!( 

UNITED STATES Cou 
RT OF APP 

"O" THa s1xT1-1 c1Rcu1T EALS 
CINCINNATI , OHIO 45202 

February z, 1g 73 

MiSS Donna Gail Waller 
BoX 8333 . 
Austin Peay State University 
Clarksville, Tennessee 37040 

Re: Case No. 17,125 
National Labor Relations Board 
vs. 
Tennessee Pack I ers, nc., Frosty Morn Division 

Dear Miss Waller: 

This is in reference to your letter of January 
1973, concerning the above case. 

3o' 

Otir records show that the above case was filed in 
this court in 1966 upon the petition of the ational Labor 
Relations Board fo;:- enforcement of an order issued by it 
directing the Respondent, Tennessee Packers, Inc., Frosty . 
Morn Division, to bargain collectively with the Amalgamated 
Meat Cutters and Butcher Workmen of North America, AFL-CIO, 
Local No. 405. On June 21, 1967, an opin i on and judgment 
of this court was entered granting the Board's petition for 
enforcement. 
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You are more than welcome to examine any part of 
the records in this case in this office. Our file would 
contain the Board's petition for enforcement of its order, 
the Respondent's answer to the petition for enforcemen~,. , 
the briefs of the parties, and the appendix t o the ~et1.t1.oner s 
brief which would contain excerpts of the record of the 
proceedings before the National Labor Relations Board. 

The record of the original proceedings before ~he 
National Labor Relations Board would be in the cust~dy 0 

the Executive Secretary of the National Labor Relations 
Board, Washington, D. C. 

I hope this Wl.
·11 be of some ass i stance to you. 

Very truly yours, 

/~---~ ~ /4L--J 
/. ~- ~ -

/ , A Higoins Clerk James • o ' 



NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD 
OFFICE C:H THE GIENIIIAL COUNSEL 

Washington, D.C. 20570 

Ms. Donna G. Waller 
p. O. Box 8333 
Austin Peay State Univers i t y 
Clarksvill~, Tennessee 37040 

Dear Ms. Waller: 

FEB 201973 

This is in response to your le t ter of inquiry dated 
January 30, 1973, concerning your research on the or­
ganizational activities at t he Tennessee Packers, Frosty 
Morn Division plant, in Clar ksville , Tennessee . 

The background events concerning the Amalgamated Meatcutters' 
attempts to organi ze thi s plant relat e back to 1963 and 
are contained in Volume 154 NLRB 819, (1965) . This same 
case is alJo reported i n t he Labor Relations Reference 
Manual, th~ ci tation of which is 60 LRRM 1093, (1965). 
Other case~ which mi ght be of some interest to you per-
tain to the discharge and layoff of employees at the 
plant because of the i r uni on activ~ties and are reported 
in 157 NLRB 53 p (1966) and 158 NLRB 1192, (1966) . 

I suggest that you vis i t a law library in your area wbere 
these volumes would be available to you . 

Sincerely yours, 

?T) ~~ C< ~ 
Michael A. Taylor 
Deputy Assistant General Counsel 
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Vf" F IC£ OF THI CLERK 

UNITED STATES COURT OF APPE 
FOR THI SIXTH Cll'ICUIT ALS 

CINCINNATI, OHIO 415202 

June 14, 1973 

. ss Donna Gail Waller 
M~4 Madison, Apartment 1 
6iarksville, Tennessee 37040 

Dear Miss Wall~r: 

This is in reference to your letter of June 7 . , 
19 73 concerning your request to examine the records of 
the ~ourt in the case of National Labor Relations Board 
s Amalgamated Meat Cutters and Butcher Workmen of 

; 0;th America vs. Frosty Morn Division of the Tennessee 
packers• 

The records are. available at your convenience. 
Our office is .open from &30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday. 

truly yours, 

.:f.~ 
J¢nes A. -{i~iins, Clerk 

JAH:dk 
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NATIONAL LABOR RELATIO~~--~~ARD 

INSTRUCTIONS TO ELECTION OBSERVERS 
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Es 
(General) : 

oUTI 
checkers end watchers. 

1, Act es 

Assist in identification of voters. 
2, 

o,el lenge voters and ballots. 
3, 

otherwise assist agents of the Board. 
4, 

THINGS TO DO ( Speci fj c): 

l, tdenti fy voter. 

o,eck off the name of the person applying to vote nr. h k '-·f 2, · v•e c ec uc: o re the nane by one 
organization. O,e che:::k after the name by the other organiza t ion or the UJl11)any. 

3
, See that only one vote ,· o ccupies a booth at any one time. 

4
. See thet each voter depos i ts a ballot in the ballot box. 

S, See that each voter le .:ves the voting room imnediately afte-r depositing his ballot. 

6, Report any conflict a s to the ri ght to vote to t he agent of the Board at your t ble. 

7, Remain in the vo ting plact- until all be 1 :ots are counted in order to check on the fairn 

of the count, ; f ba llo ts are coun t ed at tha t time. If they re not counted iately , 

you will be informed as to when and where ballots ill be counted. 

a. Report any irregularitie ~ to the Board agent as soon as noticed. 

9, O,all en~ e voters only for ~ood cause. 

10. Wear you r obser".-r badze at all times durin~ the conduct of the election . 

11. BE ONT IME. (One-half hour before the time for the openinl of the polls.) 

THI NGS NOT TO DO ( Speci Fi c): 

I. Giv e any help to 8f'Y voter. o,ly an aitent of the Board c 
a ist the vo • er. 

2. Electioneer any rlace during the hours of the election. 

3. Argue regarding the election. 

4. Leave the polling place without the agent's consent. 

S. Use intoxicating liquors. 

6. Keep any list of those who have or have not voted . 
t the oh e rver heel e 

7 W 
. t ' wt,;ct, ynu r ep rl"s en t excep . 

· ear any indication of the organ1 za inn · 1 t ·on--erin d,.v,ces, 
bad buttons placards, e ec I 

provided by the p., ,:, rrL This includes ges, . ' Th Bo rd agent is t he sole 
. t' le of clothing . e a . f 

etc., including advertising on any e r ic . d . the e lection. llu s, 0 

arbiter as to the type c,f iden tifi ca t ion to be "°~n ~ring d the ~,ring of which 

I 
com~any identif1cat1on ba ges, 

course, does not apply to regu e r ~ 

is required by t i1e company. 
h ' task with e 

h Id enter upon t 15 

A at ion you 5 ou . d r 1· ng the 
s an off ' · I · f your organiz ' 1 ' th yo,•r actions u f . 1c1a representative o f ' nd fau t w1 

t~ r ~ open mind. Conduct yourself so that no ~ne c: :ed in a fair and il!l>arti~l manner, so 
th::t1l,r. You are here to see that the election is co uc hilT'self freely and in secret. 

tech eligible voter has a fa i r and equal chance to express 

NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD. 
c;PO 171171 ' 



VOTES CHALLE~GED AND OVE - RRUIED 

Bagwell, Robert 
Bension, Jame s 
Black , Nor a 
Bunnell, J. c. 
Corlew, Don 
Dudle y , E . W. 
Dun can, Paul 
Hol t , Shirley 
Harn , Jimmy 
Hutchinson, Ophelia 
Johnson , Leonard 
Lane , Myrtle 
Mayo, Clarence 
Moore , Crosby 
Mor r ison, Bob 
Odom, Bob 
Rogers , Donald 
Rogers , D. 
Sl eigh , Charles 
Sleigh , Joh n 
Tillman, Paul 
Warren , Cl audine 
White , Roy M. 

Fros t y Morn Organization Commit tee , Septe1nbe r 20, 1964. 
Frosty Morn Correspond9nca--Employee , Union Records . 
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SUSTAINED VOTES OF 1964 SLECTION 

SuPERVISOR 

Fenneman, Glen 
Frosty, Bobby 
Harris, Bobby 
Morgan , Franklin 
Nelson, Thomas 
Seay, Morris 
Smith, Warren 

CIERICAL 

Brown, Robert 
Perry, Hubert 
Pitts, Raymond 
Wyatt, Everett 

HO COMMUNITY OF INTERSST 

Moseley , Lucien 
:/inn , Robe rt 

NOT AN EMPLOY~ OF FROSTY MO~ 

Shippard, \-/esley 
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• 

1
Le

6
ttar fro:n :tonald Sloan to Leon Schacter dated April 19 , 

9 4, NL.'iB c. ase 26-CA-20.53 and 26-RC-2030, Union Records . • 
The re is on l~ name J11i s sing from the union list • 



TRUCK DRIVERS NOT ALLOWED TO VOTE IN 1964 

Atlanta Run 

Paul Duncan 
Don Rogers 
Dolphus Rogers 

Huntsville Run 

L20 Johnson 
James Benson 

Florence Run 

Raymond \·/hi t e 

Birmingham Run 

p aul Tillman 

100 



101 

CHALLENGES IN 1964 ELE 
I CTION 

Namo -
Bagwell, Robe:u:­
Bsnson, J9.1'1'les-;.-
Black, Norai:-
Brown, Robert 
Bunnell, J • C .-Y-· 
Corlew, Donit-
Dudley, C. W. 
Duncan, Paul~:­
Fenneman, Glenn 
Frost, Roburt 
Ham, James 
Harris, Bobby 
Holt, Shirley;:­
Hutchinson, Ophelia~:­
Johnson, Leo~-
Lane, Myrtle•::-
May, Clarence 
Moore, Crosby-::­
:Morgan, Franklin 
Morrison, 3obby 
Mosley, Lu~ieni:­
Nels on, Tori 
Odom, Tomi~ 
Pitts, Roy 
Perry, Hube rt 
Rogers, Dolphus?:• 
Rogers, Doni(-
Rudolph, J. E . 
Seay , Morris 
Sheppard, Hesley 
Sleie;h, Cha i~le si:­
Slaigh, Jc,hn~:-
Smi t h, War·ren 
Tillnian, :Faul•::• 
Warren , Claudine 
Whi to , Roy~:-
Wilso n, Carl•::-
Winn , Robe rt 
Wyatt, Everett 

~:-()pen and count 

Challenge 

Union 
Union 
Board 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Board 
Board 
Union 
Boa :.."d 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Company 
Company 
Union 
Union 
Union 
BoaPd 
Union 
Union 
Union 
Union 

Reason 

supervision 
Out of town driver 
Not on payroll 
Supervision 
Sales 
Parttime 
Supervision 
Out of town driver 
Supervision 
Supervision 
Clerical 
supervis i on 
Not on payroll 
ot on payroll 

Out of town drive r 
l o 1, on payroll 
Supervision 
Buyer 
Supervision 
Supervision 
Cleri cal 
Supervi sion 
Cle rical 
Offi ce 
Supe vis i on 
Out of t own driver 
Out of t own driver 
Cleri cal 
SUporvis on 
Noto ployed 
Partti:rne 
Parttime 
Supervi sion 
Out of t own driver 
Not on payroll 
Out of t own driver 
Clerical 
supervision 
Off ice 



UNOPENED 

Bagwell, David 
Rogers, Don 
Tramil, Ro b e rt 
Odom, Paul 
Roge1:1s , Dolphus 
Hill iford, Jim 
Ben son, James 
Batson, Sam 
White , Raymond 
Duncan, Phil 
Palme r , Wilbert 
\·linn, Robert 
Hall , Lawrence 
Corlew, David 
Johnson, Leo 
Majors, Albert 
Till man, Paul 

1963 CHALLENGES 

OPEl AND COUNT 

Fuqua, James 
Te a sl ey , Allen 
Ham , JiDlllly 
Nelson , c. J . 
Richardson, Arthur 
Key , Eddie 
· arren , Claudine 
Davi dson , James 
tiller , Ray S. 

Ronsdell , John 
Hu cchlnson , Ophel ia 
Hin o~ , Byron 
Du rham , Gilbert 
Mo ~an , Ros s 
Harrison , Robert 
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APPENDIX C 

MATERIALS CONCERNING WORKERS I RIGHTS 
AT FROSTY MORN 
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BACKPAY FOR CLAUDINE WARREN 

Calendar QuaPter Gro ss Net Interim Net Back:pay 
Backpay Earni ngs 

1962-L~ 1292 . 59 -- - --- 1293 
1963-l 943.66 - -----

16t 1963-2 1296.23 232 .19 
1963-J 1184 . 55 225 .22 959 
1963-4 1332. 69 ---- -- 1333 
1964-l 1193. 31 250 .oo 943 

1964-2 1306. 31 359 . 26 947 

1964-3 1255 .12 1061. 82 193 

l 96L~-l 1268 . 52 281 . 81 987 -
8683 
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BACKPAY FOR OPHELIA HUTCHII SO i 

Calendar Quartor Gross Net Inte rim et Backpay 
Backpay Earnings 

1962-4 1313.01 ----- 1313 
1963-l 1174.49 ----- 1174 

1963--2 1232.47 ---- - 1232 

1963-3 1363.42 ----- 1363 

1963-~L 1468.26 ----- l l~68 

1964-1 1204.88 ----- 1204 

l 96L~-2 1327.29 ---- - 1327 

1964-3 1309.50 620 .14 689 

1964-4 1265.10 803 . 77 461 
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1965 WAGE SCALE 

Hour Rate Code 

0 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

Rate 

2. 285 
2.325 
2. 365 
2 . l~O 5 
2-41.1-5 
2.485 
2. 525 
2. 565 
2. 605 
2.645 
2. 685 
2. 725 
2. 765 
2. 805 
2. 845 
2. 885 
2. 925 
2. 965 
3. 005 
3.045 
3.085 
3.125 
3.165 
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Hour Rate Code 

0 
1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
1 2 
13 
l L1_ 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

196 7 WAGE SCALE 

Rate 

2 . 675 
2. 720 
2.765 
2 . 810 
2.855 
2, 900 
2, 945 
2 , 990 
3.035 
3.080 
3.125 
3.170 
3. 215 
3.260 
3. 305 
3. 3.50 
3, 395 
3.W+o 
3.485 
3. 530 
3. 575 
3.620 
3. 665 
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STRIKE AND BOYCOTT MATERIALS 
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